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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERRKRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Directors”) of Beijing
Capital Land Ltd. (“Beijing Capital Land” or the “Company”;
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), it is my pleasure to
present the Group’s interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2016.

The global economy continued to falter throughout the first half of
2016. The U.S. economic recovery did not meet expectations, and
as a result, the U.S. Federal Reserve has put its plans to raise interest
rates on hold. Across the Eurozone, economic conditions remained
fragile due to high levels of debt, while the vote to exit the
European Union in Britain created heightened uncertainties for the
global economy. Restrained by decreasing external demand and the
potential impact from U.S. interest rate hikes, the economic growth
rate of many emerging markets also slowed. In the first half of
2016, the Chinese economy grew steadily under the “new normal”
as reforms to the structure of the economy deepened and the
country continues to increasingly rely on consumption to drive
economic growth. This actively drove supply side reforms while
boosting effective demand, allowing China to achieve GDP growth
of 6.7%.

In the first half of 2016, China’s property market experienced a
certain level of rebound, albeit with continued divergence in
different cities. At the beginning of the year, the Central
Government implemented policies to stimulate the property market
and boost demand by reducing mortgage payments for first-time
home buyers, lowering tax, and relaxing credit for property loans.
On a municipal level, local governments rolled out city-specific
measures to stabilize property market development, resulting in
greater divergence among cities. Some first- and popular second-
tier cities implemented tightening measures, including house
purchase restrictions and stricter credit loan policies, as markets in
those cities picked up rapidly. Meanwhile, as inventory levels in
some second-tier and most third and forth-tier cities remained high,
de-stocking and stimulating purchases remained the key focus.
These local governments encouraged the purchase of properties by
launching a series of supportive policies, including granting non-
local home buyers city-level citizenship, also known as “hukou”.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERHKRE

The Group relentlessly strove to achieve “quality growth” in the
first half of 2016. Supported by favorable market conditions, the
Group stepped up its efforts to balance transaction volumes and
transaction prices, and steadily expanded our business in overseas
markets, which allowed the Group to realize noticeable
improvements in sales performance. The Group recorded total
contracted sales of approximately RMB16.29 billion, an increase of
34.4% year-on-year, and an average selling price of RMB18,000
per sg.m., an increase of 77.5% year-on-year. During the period,
the Group entered the Brisbane market, the third most populous
city in Australia, through a joint venture with Brisbane’s renowned
property developer, the Arden Property Group.

In the first half of 2016, the Group continued to focus on five core
cities and Australia, and made RMB13.3 billion of land investments
with a total GFA of 1.21 million sg.m.. New investment projects,
mainly in Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai, were aimed at meeting
mid-to-high end housing demand from people looking to upgrade.
In addition, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire four
projects in Beijing, Chongqging and Shenyang from its controlling
shareholder, Beijing Capital Group, which strategically replenished
the Company’s prime land bank in core cities.

During the first half, the Group was devoted to improving product
quality while exercising tight cost controls to achieve “quality
growth”. The Group rolled out a product strategy called, “Build
with Heart”, which emphasized building its high-end “Tian Yue”
product line, accelerating the establishment of product
standardization, fostering a spirit of craftsmanship, and increasing
customer satisfaction to realize improvements across product lines.
The Group also exercised tight cost controls, from setting cost
control targets and monitoring cost control processes to evaluating
cost control results, to substantially optimize project expenses.
Additionally, the Group continued to implement a centralized
procurement system that saved more than 12% in material and
equipment purchasing costs. During the period, more than 75% of
the Group’s projects used this system.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERRKRE

During the period, the Group’s “Outlets” business line expanded
rapidly by taking advantage of its first-mover advantages. With
three more outlet projects acquired in Xi‘an, Zhengzhou and Jinan,
the Group’s outlet projects currently cover 11 cities and rank No.1
nationwide in terms of number of outlet projects. The operational
performance of the four existing outlets improved steadily, with
total turnover of RMB1.23 billion for the first half of 2016, an
increase of 20% year-on-year. Moreover, the Group entered into
an agreement to inject outlet projects into Capital Juda, namely
those in Fangshan, Huzhou and Kunshan, in order to operate and
manage its outlet projects in a consistent manner.

The Group took advantage of favorable opportunities driven by the
abundance of liquidity in the capital markets in the first half of the
year to effectively lower its funding costs and proactively advance
its A-share listing application. In total, the Group successfully issued
RMB7 billion of corporate bonds at an average rate of 4.16%. In
July 2016, the Group issued a tranche of private placement
corporate bonds, among which the principle amount of RMB2
billion with 2+1 year maturity at a 3.71% coupon rate issued
represented the lowest market rates among bonds issued within
the same category. China Chengxin Credit Rating Co., Ltd. also
raised the Group’s credit rating to AAA, citing the Group's stable
outlook. This should help to set a solid foundation for the Group to
obtain further low cost financing.

During the period under review, the Group’s revenue totaled
RMB4,907,908,000 (first half of 2015: RMB5,447,244,000), down
10% from the same period last year. Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company rose 3% year-on-year to RMB519,616,000
(first half of 2015: RMB503,293,000). The Board resolved not to
declare an interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2016.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERHKRE

In the second half of 2016, the Group will continue to adhere to its
ongoing strategic goal of generating “quality growth”, and execute
its sales strategy of balancing transaction volumes and transaction
prices. Substantial emphasis will be placed on launching the “Tian
Yue” series, a high-end product line, with the goal of successfully
achieving the Group’s RMB38 billion contracted sales target for the
year. The Group will also diversify land acquisition channels and
continue to leverage synergies with Beijing Capital Group’s
business. In particular, the Group expects to acquire more primary
land development projects and possible development opportunities
alongside a number of transportation lines in Beijing and Tianjin. In
addition, the Group intends to improve its management capabilities,
stringently control costs, and continue to foster a spirit of
craftsmanship in an effort to elevate product quality and increase
pricing power. For the outlets business, the Group will steadily
expand its outlet projects by leveraging its Capital Juda listing
platform. Furthermore, the Group will remain dedicated to
propelling a breakthrough in core equity, controlling debt levels and
further reducing funding costs.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, business partners and customers for their
continued support. We will continue to enhance our competitive
advantages while remaining unwaveringly committed to becoming
the most valued integrated property developer in China.

Li Songping
Chairman

Beijing, 19 August 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WM DT

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

During the first half of 2016, the Group’s revenue totaled
RMB4,907,908,000 (first half of 2015: RMB5,447,244,000), down
10% from the same period last year. Operating profit fell 6% year-
on-year to RMB1,300,249,000 (first half of 2015:
RMB1,376,953,000). Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company increase 3% year-on-year to RMB519,616,000 (first half
of 2015: RMB503,293,000). Earnings per share (basic and diluted)
were RMB17 cents (first half of 2015: RMB25 cents), representing a
decrease of 32% compared with the first half of 2015. The Board
resolved not to declare an interim dividend for the six months
ended 30 June 2016.

PROPERTY SALES PERFORMANCE

During the first half of 2016, the total contracted sales area of the
Group’s projects totaled approximately 908,000 sg.m.. Total
contracted sales were RMB16.29 billion, up 34.4% from the same
period last year. Average selling price was RMB17,932/sq.m., up
77.5% from the same period last year.

During the first half of 2016, the Group continued to strategically
focus on core cities and effectively generated 94% of its total
contracted sales from five core cities and the Australian market,
representing a year-on-year increase of 9 percentage points. In
particular, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai were the major sales drivers
as their aggregate share of the total contracted sales reached 69%,
representing a year-on-year increase of 11 percentage points. The
Australian market, an important contributor of the Group’s sales
performance, accounted for 18% of the total contracted sales. The
Group’s newest market, Brisbane, which it just entered during the
first half of 2016, contributed contracted sales of RMB1.07 billion,
or 6.6% of the total contracted sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WM D AT

During the first half of 2016, the Group relentlessly strove to
achieve “quality growth”. The Group captured opportunities
presented by the favorable market conditions, and launched
projects at a balanced pace. In particular, the Group worked to
ensure that key projects in Beijing, Tianjin and overseas market
were launched successfully and in a timely fashion, and that the
projects recorded high sell-through rates. At the same time, the
Group stringently executed its sales strategy and made sure that a
balance was maintained between transaction volumes and
transaction prices. All of these efforts resulted in significant growth
in both contracted sales and average selling price. In the first half of
2016, the Group placed substantial emphasis on launching its “Tian
Yue” series, a high-end product line. The Tian Yue series was a
strategic move to take advantage of the rare resources that the
Group owns in core cities. In particular, the Group launched “Tian
Yue Mansion”, the apartment portion of the “Capital Center”
project in the Lize Financial District of Beijing. The project was well-
received and recorded RMB1.2 billion in contracted sales on the day
it was launched. The apartments that were put on the market were
almost sold out on the launch day. Other projects within “Tian
Yue” series that will be launched in the second half include,
“Capital of Western Village” and “Capital of Vision”.
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Beijing b= 167,455 25,345 4,244,202
Shanghai B! 101,447 23,439 2,377,825
Tianjin Rz 294,419 15,391 4,531,414
Chongging BE 94,589 6,620 626,146
Chengdu Il 49,554 10,562 523,409
Others B 122,449 8,247 1,009,864
Sydney and Brisbane e EHTIE 78,333 37,958 2,973,360
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WM DT

Geographical distribution of property sales performance in 1H of 2016 and 1H of 2015
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COMMERCIAL PROPERTY

During the first half of 2016, the Company continued to see robust
performance in the outlets business. The four outlet projects had
total sales of RMB1.25 billion, up 20% from the same period last
year.

The Group signed an agreement to inject three existing outlet
projects located in Fangshan, Huzhou and Kunshan into Capital
Juda, the outlet operating platform of the Group. In addition, the
Group also added three new outlet projects in Xi‘an, Zhengzhou
and Jinan during the period. As at the end of June 2016, The Group
was the largest operator of outlet projects in China with 11 total
projects nationwide, and the Group plans to grow and propel
Capital Juda to become “The top Integrated Outlet Operator in
China”. After injecting these mature and well-operated properties,
Capital Juda is set to enlarge the scale of its current outlets business
and improve its operating capabilities, which should help us
generate more attractive returns for shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WM DT

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In the first half of 2016, the Group, together with its joint ventures
and associated companies, completed construction of projects with
an aggregate GFA of approximately 519,000 sg.m.

gl!hé‘wynnrw

Sigé

ELYES
SEAFLYF  FEERAREZS
AR BEATERATEA BOER
REERS1 9B T K -

ﬂ

Approximate

Completed Attributable
GFA Interest
Project Type BATE A BREIEX
BB AW E 3-:Rid) REEEE EihREs
(sg.m.)
(FFFK)
Beijing Passion World Phase 1 Commercial Residential 26,474 100%
36 AUk 1 B B FHEET
Beijing Enjoyable City Phase 1 Residential 134,751 100%
b Ak #D i — HA =
Tianjin International Peninsula Plot 8-2 Residential 123,752 100%
Phase 3
REHEIEERF S 8-21th 1% = 5 F=
Tianjin Fortune Class Phase 5 Commercial 21,909 55%
KA [EES
Tianjin Capital City Phase 2 Residential 191,633 100%
REHEI —H F=E
Tianjin Amicable Mountain Phase 2 Residential 20,000 100%
KRB —H =
Total 518,519
aat
LAND INVESTMENT THIRE
During the first half of 2016, the Group continued to focus on core = —7RF F4¥F - AEE T IR EEE

cities and acquired a number of quality projects in Beijing, Shanghai
and Tianjin, while further expanding into overseas markets by
entering into Brisbane, the third largest city in Australia, where the
Group cooperated with local developer, the Arden Property Group,
through a joint venture. As of June 2016, the Group had added
nine new investment projects with a total GFA of 1.21 million
sg.m., or above ground GFA of 1.01 million sg.m., for an aggregate
amount of RMB13.3 billion. Beijing, Shanghai and Tianjin accounted
for 25%, 45% and 18% of the aggregate land investment,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In addition, in the first half of 2016, the Company entered into an
agreement with its controlling shareholder, Beijing Capital Group,
for the acquisition of the Capital Building and the Shijingshan
Xihuang Village shantytown renovation project in Beijing, along
with two residential development projects in Chongging and
Shenyang from Beijing Capital Group. As the Company is
positioned as Beijing Capital Group's sole platform in the market-
oriented property development segment, these transactions
demonstrate Beijing Capital Group’s firm commitment to support
the Company, and these quality projects in core cities will
strategically replenish the Company’s prime land bank in core cities.

As at 30 June 2016, the Company possessed a land bank with an
aggregate GFA of 11.59 million sq.m., and a total ground area of
9.41 million sq.m. The aggregate GFA attributable to the
Company'’s equity interests was 8.66 million sgq.m., and the ground
area attributable to the Company’s equity interests was 7.08 million
sg.m. Of the total land bank, approximately 83% is for property
development, and 17% is for investment properties and others. The
existing land bank is considered to be sufficient for the Group's
development over the coming three years.
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%
Total
Above
Total Ground
GFA of GFA of
Land Bank  Land Bank
Attributable ~ Available  Available
No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest for Sale for Sale
AEBL
F%  EEER i1 £4 HENE NEEE EiE: AEREER  EEER
(sqm.) (sam,)
(TAx)  (¥5K)
HOTEL PROPERTIES
EENE
1 Holiday Inn Central Plaza Xicheng District, Beijing Hotel 40% 50,712 31,840
HRRAEE IRMENE i3
2 InterContinental Financial Street Beijing Xicheng District, Beijing Hotel 34% 58,161 42,900
SRENREE IrnEsE ili3
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
RENx
3 Fangshan Capital Outlets Fangshan District, Bejing Commercial 100% 196,837 107,234
BILRERE IrRTELE Bx
4 Hainan Capital Outlets Liji Town, Wanning District, Commercial 55% 103,200 103,200
AERRRE Hainan Province 53
BEEEETRLA
5 Huzhou Capital Outlets Taihu Lake Resort, Huzhou, Commercial 100% 300,496 300,496
MM RRR Jiangsu Province [EE
WIEANTARIEERE
6 Kunshan Capital Outlets The East New Town, Kunshan, Commercial 100% 99,773 99,773
RILRRRE Jiangsu Province [EE
A& EITR B
7 Nanchang Capital Outlets Nanchang, Jiangxi Province Commercial 92.56% 158,080 158,080
HERRR IRERER Bx
8 Hangzhou Capital Outlets Fuyang District, Hangzhou, Commercial 92.56% 112,280 112,280
RS Zhejiang Province
mLenAmERE Bx
9 Wuhan Capital Outlets East Lake High-tech Development ~ Commercial 91.63% 107,560 107,560
RERRES Zone, Wuhan, Hubei Province 7%
R R REDRAHE
10 Changsha Capital Outlets Xiangjiang New Area, Changsha, ~ Commercial 21.77% 112,070 112,070
RORRRS Hunan Province [E
HEERITRLHE
1 Xi'an Capital Outlets Xi‘an Hi-Tech Industries Development - Commercial 92.56% 122,970 122,970

BLERRE

Zone, Xi‘an, Shaanxi Province
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Total

Above

Total Ground

GFA of GFA of

LandBank  Land Bank

Attributable ~ Available  Available

No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest for Sale for Sale
REHL
F  EEER REER HENE NEEE EiE: AEREER REER

(sq.m. (sq.m.)
(FAk)  (FFK)

12 Zhengzhou Capital Outlets Zhengzhou, Henan Province Commercial 92.56% 85,000 85,000
GMRER AHASN Bx
13 Jinan Capital Outlets Tangye New Town, Licheng District, ~ Commercial 92.56% 101,900 101,900
ERRERE Jinan, Shandong Province 53
LREERHEREE IR
14 Beljing Lize Financial Business District Project Fengtai District, Beijing Commercial/ 242,186 202,7%
EECHBKEER TrTERE Office
LizeF02 HE/E7E 50% 45,775 30895
EEf0
LizeF03 50% 196,411 171,901
EEf03
15 Haileybury International School Wuqing District, Tianjin School 90% 44,657 44,657
ENHRERER RETHER 21
16 Sunshing Buidling Xicheng District, Beijing Commerciall 35% 52,095 34,163
TrBEEAE IRTESE Office
B%/BTE
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
#ENE
17 Beijing Hujialou Project Xanadu Chaoyang District, Beijing Residentiall 100% 64,314 47481
IR REER i IrnihE Commercia
FE/%%
18 Beijing Yuyuantan Project The Reflections Haidian District, Beijing Residential 100% 1950 1,789
TREMEER BEE TrmigEE ffz
19 Bejing Haidian Yongfeng Industrial Base ~ Capital of Western  Haidian District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 243933 208,702
Project Plot F1 Vilage IRmERE Apartment/
FREEKEEREHR PGl Commercial
Office
tz/08/
B%/B7E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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%
Total
Above
Total Ground
GFA of GFA of
Land Bank  Land Bank
Attributable ~ Available  Available
No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest for Sale for Sale
REHL
Fh  EEER REER BELE NEEE EhL AGREEAR  REER
(sqm.) (sa.m,)
(TAx)  (F5K)
20 Beijing Haidian Yongfeng Industrial Base Haidian District, Beijing Residentiall 50% 183,345 142,083
Project Plot B2 IRTEER Apartment/
TREEKEEREMR Commercial/
Office
Ex/18/
B%/B7E
21 Beijing Haidian Taipingzhuang Project Haidian District, Beijing Residentiall 25% 13,764 13,764
FrERATIER IrmgER Apartment
Fz/0%
22 Beijing Lize Financial Business District Project Fengtai District, Bejjing Apartment/ 167,593 153,030
IrEEeRERRER IrmERE Office
LE/BTE
LizeF02 50% 139,805 126,794
BEfQ
Tian Yue Mansion 100% 27,188 26,236
RERME
21 Bejing Zhaoquanying F1-01 Project Passion World Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 18,408 18,408
FR#2EN-01EE B IRmEEE Commercial
N4
22 Bejing Zhaoquanying Land No. 4 Project  Enjoyable Trees Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 143,482 99,051
IRE2E A B IRTEER Apartment
fE/1%
23 Bejing Zhaoquanying Land No. 2 Project  Enjoyable Bay Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 141,026 90,3872
IRE2E Azl IRTEER Apartment/
Commercial
Ex/18/
Bx
24 Beijing Shunyi No. 17 Project Xanadu Mountain  Shunyi District, Beijing Residentiall 100% 98,757 70,145
FRIER 174RER Bl IRmEER Apartment
Fz/0%
25 Beijing Zhaoquanying F2-01 Project Shunyi District, Beijing Apartment/ 100% 43,656 34,756
FREZER-01EE IrRmlEZE Commercia
18/E%

BRIBXBRNHARR

Al
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Total

Above

Total Ground

GFA of GFA of

LandBank  Land Bank

Attributable ~ Available  Available

No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest for Sale for Sale
REHL
F  EEER REER HENE NEEE EiE: AEREER REER

(sq.m. (sq.m.)
(FAk)  (FFK)

26 Beijing Shunyi Renhe Town Project Golden Future Shunyi District, Beijing Residentiall 14.55% 109,807 109,807
I RIBECAEER SHARR IrmlEZE Commercia
FE/%%
27 Beijing Shunyi New Town Block Capital Park #26 Shunyi District, Bejjing Residentiall 12.5% 185,373 172,060
No. 26 Project & 26 R IRTEER Commercial
LRIBEHH 6 REE tz/E%
28 Bejing Miyun Yunfeng Shanzhuang Project  Bejing Landscape  Miyun District, Beijing Residential 100% 86,110 71,992
FREEZRIER Villa IREER frz
REL
29 Beijing Miyun New Town Project Miyun District, Beijing Residentiall 100% 153,065 118,083
IREERAER IR EER Commercial
FE/B%
30 Beijing Changyang Land No. 4 Project Novotown Fangshan District, Bejjing Residentiall 100% 7,790 5359
IRRBATHER S IrmELE Commercial
FE/B%
31 Bejing Fangshan Gaojiao Park Project Nobles Mansion ~ Fangshan District, Beijing Residential/ 100% 100,103 72,808
tRELEHEER Zha IRmELE Apartment/
Commercial
Ex/18/
Bx
32 Beijing Huang Xin Zhuang Project Ealing Fangshan District, Bejjing Residential 95% 144,985 116,169
LREFHER ! TrmELE f=z
33 Bejing Daxing Sun Village Project Enjoyable City Daxing District, Bejing Residential/ 100% 53836 49,925
IR AREER 1i#E IRTARR Apartment/
Commercial
Ez/28/
B
34 Bejing Daxing Huang Village Project Daxing District, Bejing Apartment/ 100% 186,301 134479
FRAEEMNER IRTAEE Commercia
NE/ %
35 Shanghai Songjiang Project Shanghai Time Songjiang District, Shangha Residential/ 100% 42,49 33316
HEITER FownghVila ~ ESTILTE Commercial
) LE/5%

14 BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2016




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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%
Total
Above
Total Ground
GFA of GFA of
Land Bank  Land Bank
Attributable ~ Available  Available
No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest for Sale for Sale
REHL
Fh  EEER REER HENE NEEE EiE: AEREER  EEER
(sq.m) (s.m)
(TAx)  (F5K)
36 Shanghai Yingpu Street Project The Happiness Qingpu District, Shanghai Residentiall 100% 163,329 125,105
HEERREERER 2 HEmEER Commercal
FE/H%
37 Shanghai Qingpu Xujing Project Qingpu District, Shanghai Residential 100% 20,122 21,347
HEERRTER HETERR i3
38 Shanghai Yangpu Pingliang Project Capital Of Vision  Yangpu District, Shanghai Residentiall 100% 104,829 80,841
LEERTRER ABEL LEmEER Commercial
Office
FE/E%/
278
39 Shanghai Zhoupu Project Pudong New Area, Shanghai Residential 51% 136,337 121317
HERHER HEmRRHNE i
40 Shanghai Jiading Project The Great City Jiading District, Shanghai Residentiall 60% 163,935 134,385
HERTER BRI LETEER Commercal
fz/E%
41 Shanghai Yongfeng Street The Mansion Songjiang District, Shanghai Residential/ 28% 5,889 5,889
Community 30-02 BROK LEHRIR Commercial
BT EHE30-02 /%
42 Shanghai Yongfeng Street Oriental Glorious  Songjiang District, Shanghai Residentiall 28% 5,950 5,950
Community 40-05 Yard LATNIE Commercial
LTk EEE40-05 2Rk fz/B%
43 Tianjin Shuangang 121 Project Fortune Class Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/ 55% 105,711 99,549
REEE121EE BRI RETEHR Apartment/
Commercial/
Office
tE/08/
B2/57E
44 Tianjin Shuangang 122 Project TownTianjn—  Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 55% 10,018 218
REEE12248 A-ZTown pN:d =4 s
KEAZTown

BRIBEXRMNARAT

ZE-AFRHERE
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Total

Above

Total Ground

GFA of GFA of

LandBank  Land Bank

Attributable ~ Available  Available

No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest for Sale for Sale
REHL
F  EEER REER HENE NEEE EiE: AEREER REER

(sq.m. (sq.m.)
(FAk)  (FFK)

45 Tianjin Huaming Project Noble City Dongli District, Tianjin Residentiall 40% 70,800 70,800
REZHER R REMRER Apartment/
Commercial
Ex/18/
Bx
46 Tianjin Xiging Project Landing House Xiging District, Tianjin Residential/Office 40% 17,100 17,100
pN: i e RETAER Ex/B78
47 Tianjin Eco-city Project Cambridge County ~ Binhai New District, Tianjin Residential 100% 379 379
REEEIER RiRH REHREHE i3
48 Tianjin Hongni River Project Tianjin Capital City  Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 210,287 100,287
RELETER RERE REMERE Commercia
FE/B%
49 Tianjin Lishuang Road Project Amicable Mountain ~ Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 100% 99,980 56,270
REREHRER Al REmEER s
50 Tianjin Beiyunhe Project Grand Canal Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 235,772 146,854
REJEAER Milestone REHALR Apartment/
AARE Commercial
t£/28/
B
51 Tianjin Zhongshanlu Project Metropolis Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/ 100% 127,736 100,736
REHILBER r#e REMALE Commerciall
Office
fx/B%/
52 Tianjin Xinzhuang No. 5 Project Poetic Life Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 100% 123,038 123,038
REFRnHEE BRI RETEHE fr=z
53 Tianjin Hongxianli Project North Shore Center  Honggiao District, Tianjin Residentiall 25% 337,530 246,630
NHAEEYLE pig=lll REMARE Commerciall
Office
kz/Hm%/
g7
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%
Total

Above

Total Ground

GFA of GFA of
LlandBank  Land Bank
Attributable Available Available

No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest for Sale for Sale
REHL
Fh  EEER REER HENE NEEE EiE: AEREER BEER

(sq.m. (sq.m.)
(FAk)  (F5K)

54 Tianjin Wuging Project Interational Wuging District, Tianjin Residentiall 100% 227,259 227,259
RERERR Peninsula REMRER Commercial/
i Office
FE/B%/
B78
55 Chongging Hong'ensi Project Hong'en Jiangbei District, Chongging Residentiall 100% 105,946 16,542
ERBRTER htenational ~ EETIIE Commercial
Living District FE/8%
EREARLER
5%  Chongging Xiyong Project Chongging Eco Shapingba District, Chongging Residentiall 28.24% 175,238 70,860
ERFKER Vilage ERMHTER Apartment/
Ly} Commercia
f£/28/
Bx
57 Chongging Jialingchang Project Chongging Capital  Shapingba District, Chongging Residentiall 20.73% 731417 537,709
ERERAER City EEMMTER Commercia
EREAM Bz/B%
58 Chengdu Jianshe Road Project Chengdu A-Z Town  Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residentiall 100% 2,203 542
RAERAER HAAZ Town Sichuan Province Commercia
mIERBTRER FE/H%
59 Chengdu Shengli Village Project Chengdu First City  Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/ 100% 17,06 15,975
RAEHTER RS Sichuan Province Commercia
mIERSTRER fE/H%
60 Chengdu Beiquan Road Project (ittd Villa Longquanyi District, Chengdu, Residential/ 55% 50,484 152
AL RAER RAT Sichuan Province Commercial
Ik BmE R ER fz/E%
61 Chengdu SCE Project Wanjuanshan Longquanyi District, Chengdu, Residentiall 55% 107,775 39,844
B AER g5l Sichuan Province Commercial
mlEpHnEsER Office
fz/%%/
B78
62 Chengdu Qinglongchang Project Chengdu Eco Vilage ~ Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/ 100% 251,463 178,740
RAEERER gl Sichuan Province Commercial
WK BHKER fz/E%

HAIBXROARAT —B-AERHRE 17
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Total
Above
Total Ground
GFA of GFA of
Land Bank  Land Bank
Attributable ~ Available  Available
No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest for Sale for Sale
AEBL
F  EEER REER HENE NEEE EiE: AEREER  EEER
(s.m) (sg.m)
(Thx)  (¥5K)
63 Chengdu Huaxin Village Project Galaxy No.1 Jinjiang District, Chengdu, Residentiall 225% 241,538 164,930
RAEER BF1% Sichuan Province Commercial
g fz/E%
64 Chengdu P.0. Box 68 Project The Place No.68  Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residentiall 40% 264,588 22417
HA68 RAEIER KiE68H Sichuan Province Commercial
M &R BHRER fx/E%
65 Xi'an Feng-cheng Road Project Xi'an First City Xi'an Economic and Technology Residentiall 92.56% 565,740 385,800
RZEARIER FZER Development Zone, Shaanxi Commercial/
Province Office
RELAZTAERAREE  0%/8%/
g7
66 Shenyang Shenying Road Project Shenyang First City Hunnan New District, Shenyang, Residential/ 30% 84,305 52,116
EREERER R Liaoning Province Apartment/
EELRRTERHE Commercial
Fz/08/
B
67 Shenyang Yinhe Bay Project Qipan Hills First Vil Qi Pan Shan District, Shenyang, Residentiall 50% 358,603 343,403
ARRTEEE IR Liaoning Province Commercial
REARGTEZLE FE/B%
68 Shenyang Shenzhong Street Project Shenyang Eco Village Hunnan New District, Shenyang, Residentiall 100% 533,953 454,728
N by il Liaoning Province Commercial
RELERTERHE LE/5%
69 Qingdao Chengyang Project Airport International -~ Qingdao, Shandong Province Commerciall 100% 93,984 93,984
EENBER Centre LREEETHGE Office
ZRERTL B%/B7E
70 Qingdao Central Park No. 1 Project Qingdao Central Park Chengyang District, Qingdao, Residentiall 100% 19,941 19,941
NN E No. 1 Shandong Province Apartment/
RE1H LREEETHFE Commercial
tE/08/
B
71 Qingdao Yangbuzhai Project Qingdao Central Park Chengyang District, Qingdao, Residentiall 100% 692 692
EERERER No.1-EastPark  Shandong Province Commercial
RENFRE  WREESTHERE fE/H%
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Above

Total Ground

GFA of GFA of
LlandBank  Land Bank
Attributable Available Available

No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest for Sale for Sale
REHL
Fh  EEER REER HENE NEEE EiE: AEREER BEER

(sq.m. (sq.m.)
(FAk)  (F5K)

72 Qingdao Qiangianshu Project Sunny Xiangmi Lake  Licang District, Qingdao, Residentiall 100% 126 126
EETTHER GREZH Shandong Province Commercia
LREBEETEER fz/E%
73 Yantai Sunny Chief Yard Project Yantai Sunny Fushan District, Yantai, Residential/ 100% 58,491 58,491
EaBtERER Chief Yard Shandong Province Commercial
EaBrER WREEATRILE fz/E%
74 Zhenjiang National University Science Joyous House Zhenjiang Technological Residentiall 100% 16,506 16,502
Park Project TR Development Zone, Commercial
BIERAENHERR Jiangsu Province fz/m%
THEEITRIFER
75 Kunshan Jinxi Project Kunshan Eastern— Jinxi Town, Kunshan City, Resedential/ 51% 265,584 265,584
EIISHRER Mystery Jiangsu Province Commercial/
SrReRANE  IRERUTHEHE Hotel
FE/E%/
il'3
76 Wuxi Dongting Town Project Wuxi Gentle House ~ Xishan District, Wuxi, Residential/ 100% 22,989 17292
BRREER BHER Jiangsu Province Commercial
IHEEGTHILE fE/ %
77 Wuxi Jichang Road Project Wuxi Joyous House ~ Wuxi New District, Jiangsu Province  Residential/ 100% 20,759 2,602
BHRA%ER BHUH THE AR Commercial
fE/B%
78 Jiangsu Jiangyin Yuyue Project Jiangyin Auspicious  Yushan Bay, Jiangyin, Residentiall 100% 144,018 127,746
IRHER House Jiangsu Province Commercia
TERITE &8 IEMHILE fz/B%
79 Huzhou Renhuangshan Project Joyous House Renhuangshan District, Huzhou, Residential/ 55% 17499 10,999
MMCEIER W Thejiang Province Commercia
FIEANTC2LE fz/E%
80 Huzhou Taihu Project Huzhou Integrated  Taihu National Tourism Vacation ~ Residential/ 100% 413,808 384,695
ANAHER Outlets Project Zone, Huzhou, Jiangsu Province Commercial
AMRE R FIEMMTOMEERE  £T/B%
FaE
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Total
Above
Total Ground
GFA of GFA of
Land Bank  Land Bank
Attributable ~ Available  Available
No.  Project Project Name Location Type Interest for Sale for Sale
AEBL
F  EEER REER HENE NEEE EiE: AEREER  EEER
(s.m) (sg.m)
(Thx)  (¥5K)
81 Hainan Wanning Project Hainan Integrated  Lji Town, Wanning, Residential/ 197,612 197,612
BHEEER Outlets Project Hainan Province Apartment/
BERNRT BHEEEMRLA Commercial
ok Ez/2E8/
Bx
1Plot 55% 54,866 54,866
1508
2 Plot, 3 Plot 55% 4755 4755
253 3%
5 Plot, 6 Plot 100% 137,990 137,990
S5 6%
82 Kunshan Capital Outlets Project Kunshan Integrated ~ The East New Town, Kunshan, Residential/ 100% 3117 M3117
EILRRREER Outlets Project Jiangsu Province Apartment/
BIRKHE &R TRPH Commercal
ok Ez/0E/
Bx
83 Nanchang Capital Outlets Nanchang, Jiangxi Province Commercial 92.56% 32,560 32,560
BERRRS IREmEm [
84 Jinan Capital Outlets Tangye New Town, Licheng District, ~ Commercial 92.56% 40,000 40,000
ERRERE Jinan, Shandong Province
LREEATEAEE R &%
85 Project Carlingford, Australia Lexington Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 9,490 9,490
B Carlingford 2 8 RANEERT frz
8  Project Mega, Australia Dover Sydney, Australia Residential 50% 16,110 16,110
B Megald B RANGER fr=z
87 Project Arden, Australia Jade & Panorama  Brisane, Australia Residential 50% 12,818 12,878
B Arden BB BARIEH 2H fz
Total 11592293 9,411,083
it
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES

As at 30 June 2016, the Group employed 1,953 professionals with
an average age of 33.3. In terms of education level, 73% of
employees hold a bachelors degree or higher and 11% of
employees hold a masters degree or higher. Employees with
intermediate or senior professional titles accounted for 23%.

In the first half of 2016, the Group adhered to the principle of
“Quality Growth,” updated its business strategy, and adjusted its
organizational structure in an effort to maintain the competitive
advantage of the Group’s core businesses and push the
development of innovative businesses. Through consistent and
deepened reform of the Group’s organizational structure, Beijing
Capital Land focused on core regions such as Beijing and Shanghai,
improved product competitiveness, and strengthened cost control.
The long-term goal of the organizational adjustment is to help the
Group unleash its potential and build a robust platform for
sustainable development.

The Group adopted strategy for human capital that is focused on
attracting the highest quality talent in the industry. With an ever-
evolving and ever-improving approach to talent management, the
Group looked to lure top professionals from the industry. The
Group also provided tailor-made training schemes to arm
employees with skills that the Company’s development strategy
requires, and provided various learning platforms for employees to
nurture leadership skills, sharpen professional expertise and foster
innovation. The Group intends to build an efficient and competitive
team of talent equipped with international vision, high
professionalism and great versatility to provide intellectual support
for the Group’s sustainable growth.

Also, the Group promoted a corporate culture based on passion
and trust, and fostered a working environment full of joy,
collaboration and innovation. The Group also aims to further build
cohesiveness within the Group and strengthen its position as an
influential business leader, which should also help pave the way for
future development.
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OUTLOOK

Looking ahead to the second half of 2016, the macro economy is
expected to remain stable, despite certain downward pressures. For
the property sector, as future policies are likely to be stable, the
industry will keep growing at a steady pace. The trend of regional
divergence is set to remain, meaning first- and key second-tier cities
as a whole will have great potential as demand for housing
upgrades continues to rise, while third- and fourth-tier cities are
likely to see strong destocking pressure.

During the second half of 2016, the Group will aim to achieve the
following goals and strategic initiatives:

1. The Group will continue striving for “quality growth” by
striking a balance between transaction prices and volumes,
while also implementing prudent cost controls. To effectively
realize this, the Group will ensure that projects are launched
at a steady pace, and that new supply from key projects is
sufficient. Improvements to the in-house sales team will be
made and a centralized contract-signing center will be set up.
Meanwhile, the Group aims to establish an integrated
marketing management system that is synchronized with all
other areas of the business, which will help to facilitate the
contract-signing process and improve collections. The Group
aims to achieve a full-year target of RMB38 billion in
contracted sales.

2. The Group endeavors to manage its land bank prudently and
acquire more high-grade land plots through various channels
outside of public auctions. The Group intends to acquire
potential primary land development projects and shantytown
renovation projects by leveraging synergies with Beijing
Capital Group's business. The Group is also eyeing
development opportunities alongside transportation lines in
core cities, and renovation opportunities in industrial areas,
both of which could both become exciting areas of potential.

22 BELING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital Juda will serve as an important platform that can help
the Group further expand its presence nationwide. In the
second half, the Group will look to integrate outlet projects by
completing the injection of the Fangshan, Kunshan and
Huzhou outlet projects. The Group is also committed to
comprehensively integrating business resources in an
innovative way by making full use of both online and offline
platforms that can create better user experiences. These
efforts are expected to help the Group establish its business
across the value-chain around outlets business and further
improve Capital Juda’s commercial operating capabilities.
Additionally, the Group will fully utilize the advantage that
Capital Juda provides as a red-chip platform for equity
financing.

The Group will continue to expand its use of the bond market
as liquidity is currently abundant. It will also look to control
debt levels and roll over certain loans to optimize debt costs.
In addition, the Group will proactively accelerate the process
of its A-share listing application, enlarge the scale of its
property funds, and explore innovative financing methods
such as asset securitization. Furthermore, the Group will look
to acquire new business resources that could become new
profit drivers, and create synergies with its traditional
businesses in an effort to upgrade and transform its overall
business.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

1

Revenue and Operating Results

In the first half of 2016, revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB4,907,908,000 (2015 1H:
RMB5,447,244,000), representing a decrease of 10% from
the first half of 2015. The decrease in revenue was mainly
attributable to the decrease in projects completed and
occupied during the period.

In the first half of 2016, the Group achieved a gross profit
margin after business tax of approximately 10.4%,
representing a decrease of 3.2 percentage points as compared
to 13.6% in the first half of 2015, mainly attributable to a
decrease in proportion of revenue from properties with higher
gross profit margin in premier regions such as Beijing as
compared to the first half of 2015.

“‘
- —

NERIER BT & » #E— T IHmARE
HEEB2EME R RFHHATIA
BES  lEWL - Bl MR
FHRARERIEANEEIA ¢ LA
MEBHEEEAREER  EBNEH
WERLETYE  BBRAFER
BRI TENRERMEL LR
o RBERANEELR) A0
BEHABEAXASZSFENBRARED
e BRERBARERE

TUEREMETTEE - MERAES
MEEERERE  BBEHNEES
AEFBERE  BEEBKA &
MiEEARBRTE  BAMERES
HRR - RREEBHCFEFBMES
X BREAUBEIEFER -
SHRIOMERRS - RRHRHE
BERESEBN R ERE - By AE
EEERTHR -

LU Sk

1

WATEE RS

ZE-RFL¥F  AEENEER
A#) B NERH4,907,908,000 L (—F
—RF E¥F - ARMES,447,244,000
T)  BR-TE—REFEERIY
10%  EHEBABLHNEEREARR
HAM$TE T AR B RE AL ©

ZEAFLE¥F  AEEER A
TIEENRL104% BT —FF
EH¥F13.6%HEFEMEL TF3.2
EE e TZERASARILERSE
R e EFNYERAGEERAL
BRI -ZZE—RAFEFFTHF-

BRIBEXBRNARAT —T-AEHHEE

23



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WM DT

In the first half of 2016, operating profit of the Group was
approximately RMB1,300,249,000 (2015 1H:

RMB1,376,953,000),

representing a decrease of

approximately 6% as compared to the first half of 2015.

2 Financial Resources, Liquidity and Liability

Position

During the period of review, the Group maintained a healthy
liquidity position and a reasonable appropriation of financial
resources. As at 30 June 2016, the Group's total assets were
RMB109,855,221,000 (31
RMB101,801,398,000) and non-current assets were
RMB22,152,082,000 (31

RMB19,141,872,000);

RMB86,888,473,000 (31
RMB78,164,826,000) of which, current liabilities were
RMB42,097,757,000 (31
RMB34,672,003,000) and non-current liabilities were
RMB44,790,716,000 (31

RMB43,492,823,000),

RMB22,966,748,000 (31
RMB23,636,572,000).

and owners’

December 2015:

December 2015:

and total liabilities were

December 2015:
December 2015:
December 2015:

equity was
December 2015:

The Group has sound liquidity and solvency. Current ratio of
the Group as at 30 June 2016 was 2.08 (31 December 2015:

2.38).

As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s cash and bank deposit

amounted to RMB13,156,251,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB17,747,986,000), which represented sufficient cash flow

for operations.

24 BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Interim Report 2016

ZE-RFL¥F  AEENEET
BH A AR 1,300,249,000 L (—F
—hFE¥F  AREE1,376,953,000
) B-ZE—AFLEETRY
6% °

MHRER -
/R

%@@%W'$%EW§£M%E%
BEREKYE M BRERTMMELEE
BHM e ﬁé:g—/ﬁﬁ/‘*\ﬂ =+H8-

FEBWNEEREEARE
109,855,221,00075(:9E—£¢+:
A =Z + — B: AR &
101,801,398,0007T) ' JEREBEEH
AR #22,152,082,0007t(— T —H

nBEEREENR

$+:HE+—E|- AR
19,141,872,0007C ) * #& f RAR
ﬁiﬂé'f86,888,473,0007‘5( —E—RF
+=Z A=+ —H: AR K
78,164,826,0007T) * He - FEEE

& A AR 42,097,757,000 T ( ==
—HEE+-A=+—H: AR
34,672,003,0007T) ' IERBEE A
AR #44,790,716,000 (= Z—H
F+_A=+—H: AR%
43,492,823,0007T) + R #EZ B A
R #22,966,748,000 T ( — T —HF
+Z A=+ —H: AR ¥
23,636,572,0007C) ©

$$@Eﬁ§§_mu@]|§§ﬁ BEES
FD e AEER_-ZF /\E/ A=+
BRAEEt X B2208(ZE—HF
+tZA=+t—H:238)"

RZZE—REXNA=1TH  NEER
e B ITHERXRBARE
13,156,251,000 L( = FE—RHF + =
A=+—8: AR%¥17,747,986,000
L) BRRESHEEESR K-



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Bank borrowings and debentures of the Group as at 30 June
2016 amounted to RMB51,489,373,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB46,349,475,000), of which the long-term loan and
debentures amounted to RMB37,732,842,000 (31 December
2015: RMB36,587,739,000), which were mainly used to
satisfy the capital requirements of the Group’s property
development projects.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 79% (31 December 2015: 77%). The gearing
ratio of the Group is calculated by the total liabilities divided
by total assets.

Changes in major subsidiaries, principal jointly
controlled entities and joint ventures

Juyuan Xincheng (Tianjin) Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(BREFH(KE)IZREEEERRAA), asubsidiary of the
Group, was established in March 2016, and 100% of its
equity interest was held by the Group.

Xian Shouju Commercial Development Management Co., Ltd.
(AL EEmERZEEEEMRAF), asubsidiary of the Group,
was established in March 2016, and 92.56% of its net assets
was held by the Group.

Juyuan Xincheng (Tianjin) Trading Co., Ltd. (BJR{Z 3 (K%F)
B BBRAR]), a subsidiary of the Group, was established in
April 2016, and 100% of its equity interest was held by the
Group.

Beijing Yongyuanxing Real Estate Co., Ltd. (1t FKREE %
BBRAF]), a subsidiary of the Group, was established in May
2016, and 100% of its equity interest was held by the Group.

Zhengzhou Juxin Outlets Industry Co., Ltd. (Ef/NEE(Z BT
¥ AR 2 7)), a subsidiary of the Group, was established in
May 2016, and 92.56% of its net assets was held by the
Group.
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During the period, the Group acquired 51% of equity interest
in Shanghai Yujing Real Estate Co., Ltd. (_E /8 #5158 5= i Z 59
B F PR 2 7)) (“Shanghai Yujing”) and its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Shanghai Xuanxi Real Estate Co., Ltd. (/8B EF
HER# AR A F]) (“Shanghai Xuanxi”).

During the period, the Group invested in the establishment of
Tianjin Lianjin Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (K2 ERE
Hh 2 9 2 A BR A 7)) (“Tianjin Lianjin”). Upon completion of
the investment, the Group held 25% of equity interest in its
joint venture, Tianjin Lianjin.

During the period, the Group reached an agreement with the
other shareholder of its former subsidiary Beijing Shangbodi
Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (IE i E#E BB R A
A]) (“Shangbodi”) to exercise significant decision-making
jointly. Upon the completion of amending the article of
association, Shangbodi became a joint venture of the Group.

Entrusted Deposits and Overdue Time Deposits

As at 30 June 2016, the Group did not have any deposits
under trusts in financial institutions in the PRC. All of the
Group’s cash was held in commercial banks in PRC in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The Group
has no bank deposits which are not recoverable upon
maturity.

Borrowings

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB66,500,000 (31
December 2015: nil) were secured by the guarantee provided
by the Group for its subsidiaries, and pledged by trade
receivables.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB300,000,000 (31
December 2015: nil) were secured by the guarantee provided
by the Group and other third parties for its subsidiaries, and
secured by land use rights under development of the Group
and pledged by equity interests of the Group.
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As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB2,882,625,000 (31
December 2015: RMB3,404,700,000) were secured by certain
properties under development.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB778,000,000 (31
December 2015: RMB809,000,000) were secured by fixed
assets and land use rights.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB3,134,472,000 (31
December 2015: RMB1,728,550,000) were secured by the
guarantee provided by the Group for its subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB5,417,532,000 (31
December 2015: RMB7,656,447,000) were secured by the
guarantee provided by the Group for its subsidiaries, and
secured by certain properties under development of the
subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB395,000,000 (31
December 2015: RMB440,000,000) were secured by the
guarantee provided by the Group for its subsidiaries, and
secured by investment properties of the subsidiaries and the
relevant land use rights.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB720,000,000 (31
December 2015: nil) were pledged by the corresponding
income right of land use rights under development of the
subsidiaries of the Group.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB300,000,000 (31
December 2015: RMB600,000,000) were secured by the
guarantee provided by the Group for its subsidiaries, and
secured by land use rights under development of the
subsidiaries of the Group and pledged by equity interests.
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As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB728,776,000 (31
December 2015: RMB694,029,000) were pledged by bank
deposits of the Group.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB50,000,000 (31
December 2015: RMB57,500,000) were pledged by the entire
equity interests of and the income arising from primary land
development of the Group.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB5,117,000,000 (31
December 2015: RMB4,728,000,000) were credit loans
obtained by the Group.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB1,220,000,000 (31
December 2015: RMB1,220,000,000) were secured by the
guarantee provided by Capital Group for the Group, and
secured by land use rights under development of the Group.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB1,280,000,000 (31
December 2015: RMB2,370,000,000) were pledged by the
equity interests of subsidiaries held by the Group and the
guarantee provided by the Group.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB750,000,000 (31
December 2015: RMB760,000,000) were secured by the
guarantee provided by Capital Group and the Group for its
subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2016, bank loans of RMB6,500,000,000 (31
December 2015: RMB8,200,000,000) were secured by the
guarantee provided by Capital Group for the Group.
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Corporate Bonds

In May 2015, the Group issued 5-year RMB bonds in a
principal amount of RMB3,000,000,000 with an interest rate
of 4.58% per annum.

In October 2015, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
placement bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,500,000,000
with a prevailing interest rate of 4.7% per annum. The issuer
shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the investors
shall be entitled to sell back the bonds at the end of the
second year.

In December 2015, the Group issued 3-year RMB private
placement bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,500,000,000
with an interest rate of 4.78% per annum.

In April 2016, the Group issued 3-year RMB private placement
bonds in a principal amount of RMB700,000,000 with a
prevailing interest rate of 4% per annum. The issuer shall be
entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the investors shall be
entitled to sell back the bonds at the end of the second year.

In April 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private placement
bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,300,000,000 with a
prevailing interest rate of 4.2% per annum. The issuer shall be
entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the investors shall be
entitled to sell back the bonds at the end of the third year.

In June 2016, the Group issued 3-year RMB private placement
bonds in a principal amount of RMB2,300,000,000 with a
prevailing interest rate of 4.1% per annum. The issuer shall be
entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the investors shall be
entitled to sell back the bonds at the end of the second year.

In June 2016, the Group issued 5-year RMB private placement
bonds in a principal amount of RMB1,700,000,000 with a
prevailing interest rate of 4.26% per annum. The issuer shall
be entitled to adjust the coupon rate and the investors shall
be entitled to sell back the bonds at the end of the third year.
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Note

In February 2014, Central Plaza Development Ltd. (“Central
Plaza”), a subsidiary of the Group, established a Guaranteed
Note and Perpetual Securities Programme (the “Programme”),
guaranteed by International Financial Center Property Ltd.
("IFC"), a subsidiary of the Group, or, as the case may be, the
Company, for securities to be issued thereunder. Under the
Programme, Central Plaza may offer and issue securities in a
principal amount of up to USD1,000,000,000.

In February 2014, Central Plaza made a drawdown under the
Programme to offer and issue 3-year notes in a total principle
amount of RMB2,000,000,000 at an interest rate of 5.75%
per annum and 5-year notes of RMB250,000,000 at an
interest rate of 6.875% per annum.

In April 2014, Central Plaza made a drawdown under the
Programme to offer and issue 3-year notes in a total principle
amount of RMB1,000,000,000 at an interest rate of 5.75%
per annum to be consolidated and formed a single series with
the 3-year notes of RMB2,000,000,000 with an interest rate
of 5.75% per annum issued in February 2014.

In July 2015, Rosy Capital Global Limited (“Rosy Capital”), a
subsidiary of the Group, issued 3-year RMB notes in a principal
amount of RMB1,300,000,000 with an interest rate of 5.25%
per annum, which were guaranteed by subsidiaries of the
Group and a keepwell agreement provided by Capital Group.
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Equity Instrument

As of 30 June 2016, Central Plaza issued a total amount of
USD850,000,000 senior perpetual securities. Such securities
were guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of the Group
including IFC. Such securities have no maturity date and are
redeemable at the option of Central Plaza as the issuer.
Central Plaza as the issuer may elect to defer distribution with
no times limits only if Central Plaza or the Company does not
declare or pay a dividend. The securities are classified as equity
instrument, where:

In April 2013, Central Plaza issued USD400,000,000 senior
Perpetual Capital Securities at a distribution rate of 8.375%.
In November 2014, Central Plaza issued USD450,000,000
perpetual securities under the Medium Term Note and
Perpetual Securities Programme at a distribution rate of
7.125%.

In December 2014, Minsheng Royal raised a total amount of
RMB650,000,000. According to the terms of Investment
Agreement, the amount of minority interests recognized
amounted to RMB580,125,000 after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future. In June 2016, the
assets management plan was settled.

In January 2015, Minsheng Royal raised a total amount of
RMB1,080,000,000. According to the terms of Investment
Agreement, the amount of minority interests recognized
amounted to RMB963,900,000 after deducting the inevitable
dividend payable in the foreseeable future. In June 2016, the
Group declared that the assets management plan would be
settled in July 2016, and the equity instrument was thus
recognized as non-current liabilities due within one year.

In January 2015, Tiandi Fangzhong raised a total amount of
RMB1,200,000,000. According to the terms of Investment
Agreement, the amount of minority interests recognized
amounted to RMB1,075,200,000 after deducting the
inevitable dividend payable in the foreseeable future.
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group had arranged bank facilities for certain purchasers
of its properties and provided guarantees to secure the
repayment obligations of such purchasers. The outstanding
balances of guarantees amounted to RMB6,681,456,000 as
at 30 June 2016 (31 December 2015: RMB6,902,006,000).

Such guarantees will terminate upon (i) the issuance of the
real estate ownership certificate which will generally be
available within six months to two years after the Group
transfers the ownership of the relevant property to its
purchasers; (ii) the completion of the mortgage registration;
and (iii) the issuance of the real estate miscellaneous right
certificate relating to the relevant property.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group provided guarantees for its
subsidiaries’ borrowing of RMB17,910,179,000 (31 December
2015: RMB20,263,072,000).

As at 30 June 2016, IFC, a subsidiary of the Group, provided
guarantees for the corporate bonds of RMB3,250,000,000
and the Senior Perpetual Capital Securities of
UsD850,000,000 issued by Central Plaza, a subsidiary of the
Group.

As at 30 June 2016, Capital Juda, a subsidiary of the Group,
provided guarantees for the medium term notes of
RMB1,300,000,000 issued by Rosy Capital, a subsidiary of the
Group.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group provided guarantee for the
assets management plan of RMB2,280,000,000.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group provided a guarantee
amounted to RMB600,000,000 to Capital Jiaming New Town
Investment and Development Ltd. (“Capital Jiaming”) for a
long term borrowing amounted to RMB1,200,000,000.

Save as the above, the Group had no other material external
guarantee.
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SHARE CAPITAL

As of 30 June 2016, there was a total issued share capital of
3,027,960,000 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
include:
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A% 7N 5 3,027,960,000 (% J& 15 - EhB3E -

Approximate

Number of percentages of
Shares  share capital
ROBE REABNEDL
Domestic Shares A& L 1,649,205,700 54.47%
Non-H Foreign Shares FEHRRINE AR 357,998,300 11.82%
H Shares H A% 1,020,756,000 33.71%
3,027,960,000 100%
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AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as of 30 June 2016, the
following entities (other than the directors or chief executives of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO:
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ARBIR_E—RFA=Z+H HES
Fra - THOER(WIFARARZEETHS
BEBAB)NARBIRD REERD R
HEAREZESFKBEKRAIXVEE2 L3
HHAEARRZERIAR

Approximate percentages in Approximate percentages in
relevant class of shares (%) total issued share capital (%)
ERBRARG <BOBDL (%) H2HRRORAZEATEAL(%)
Number of
Shares directly Direct Indirect  Aggregate Direct Indirect ~ Aggregate
Name of shareholders and indirectly held  Class of Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
ERREERE
RRE®/ 14 ZBHEE  RGEH ERER i 3 BHAY ERER BiER R4y
Capital Group 1,649,205,700  Non-listed Shares 8217 - 82.17 5447 - 5447
EEEE (Note 1) SEEMARA (long position) (long position)
(BsE1) (#8) (i#8)
Beiling Rong Tong Zheng He Investment 357,998,300 Non-listed Shares - 17.83 17.83 - 11.82 11.82
Management Company Limited (Notes1and2)  FELMARA (long position) (long position)
FRRRINREERERAA (ME1R2) (§#8) (#8)
Guoda Limited 357,998,300  Non-listed Shares - 1783 1783 - 11.82 1182
BERRAA (Note3)  FLmiRfA (long position) {long position)
(B3E3) (i#8) (#8)
China Resource Products Limited 357,998,300 Non-listed Shares 13.71 4N 17.83 9.09 273 11.82
HENEFRAT (Noted)  EEMERA (long position) ~ (long position) (long position)  (long position)
(Bst4) (#8) (i#8) (i#8) (#8)
Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited 82,762,100 Non-isted Shares 412 - 412 273 - 273
BEEBLEERAT kEmRA (long position) (long position)
(#8) (#8)

34 BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2016



LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR

1AREHOLDERS

BHBRABRMEERR
&
Approximate percentages in Approximate percentages in
relevant class of shares (%) total issued share capital (%)
HERERRG ZBHE AL (%) E2HERARAZEAADL (%)
Number of
Shares directly Direct Indirect  Aggregate Direct Indirect ~ Aggregate
Name of shareholders and indirectly held  Class of Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
ERREEEE
RRE®/ 14 ZBHEE  ROEH ERER i 3 Eniy ERRR BEEL BEniy
Reco Pearl Private Limited 165,070,000 H Shares 16.17 - 16.17 5.45 - 545
H& (long position) (long position)
(#8) (#8)
Recosia China Pte Ltd 165,070,000 H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 545 545
(Note5)  HI% (long position) (long position)
(B3s) (i#8) (i#8)
Recosia Pte Ltd. 165,070,000 H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 545 5.45
(Note6)  HIR (long position) (long position)
(Fs3t6) (#8) (#8)
Government of Singapore Investment 165,070,000 H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 5.45 5.45
Corporation (Realty) Pte Ltd. (Note7)  HR (long position) (long position)
(BsE7) (i#8) (#8)
HEIBERHBERAT —B—AFFHERE
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R RABRMEEZRR

Notes:

1. 1,649,205,700 Shares are directly held by Capital Group. As at 30 June 2016, China
Resource Products Limited is held as to 31.53% by Beijing Sunshine Real Estate
Comprehensive Development Company* (3t R[5 3 E AR & B #2 &]), which in
turn is wholly-owned by Capital Group. Accordingly, Capital Group is not deemed
to be interested in 275,236,200 Shares held through China Resource Products
Limited and 82,762,100 Shares held through China Resource Products Limited and
Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited pursuant to the SFO.

2. 275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly
held through Guoda Limited and China Resource Products Limited. 82,762,100
Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly held through
Guoda Limited, China Resources Products Limited and Yieldwell International
Enterprise Limited.

3. 275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly
held through China Resource Products Limited. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed
corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly held through China Resources
Products Limited and Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited.

4. 82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly
held through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited.

5. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly
held through Reco Pearl Private Limited.

6. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly
held through Reco Pearl Private Limited and Recosia China Pte Ltd.

7. 165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests pursuant to the SFO indirectly
held through Reco Pearl Private Limited, Recosia China Pte Ltd. and Recosia Pte Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, as of
30 June 2016, none of the entities (other than the directors or chief
executives of the Company) had any interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO.
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OTHER INFORMATION
Hfth & %

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

As at 30 June 2016, none of the directors, supervisors and chief
executives of the Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company or the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers. None of the directors, supervisors and
chief executives of the Company or their spouses or children under
18 years of age had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company or had exercised any such rights during
the period.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial report matters,
including the review of the unaudited interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2016.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Company had not
redeemed any of its shares. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities
during the period.

Long Term Incentive Fund Scheme

On 27 September 2007, the Company had adopted the long term
incentive fund scheme (the “Scheme”) which was subsequently
amended on 25 September 2009 and 14 March 2014 respectively.
The Scheme is proposed to encourage the directors, supervisors,
senior management and core staff members of the Company for
closer ties of their personal interests with the interests of the
Company and of the shareholders, as well as for alignment of their
personal goals with the common goal of the Company.

For the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Company had through
the trustee purchased 21,100,000 H Shares, representing
approximately 2.0% of H Shares and approximately 0.7% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company, from the stock market.
The shares purchased have been held in trust by the trustee.
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Corporate Governance

During the period from 1 January 2016 to 30 June 2016, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report”
as set out in Appendix 14 to the “Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited” (the
“Listing Rules”).

Compliance with the Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code which is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the “Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model

Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and the company code throughout the
period.
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
AHRANEERMER
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
ZE-AREAASTH (RENEHN  EREARBARETT)

Audited Audited
Unaudited 31 December Unaudited 31 December
30 June 2016 2015 30 June 2016 2015
RBE & REEG S
E-RE —T-1f “E-RE —T-1%
AA=tH +tZA=t-H AA=tH +tZA=t—-H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
[tem HH fisE i i AT NG
Current assets RBEE
Cash at bank and on hand EREs 5(1) 13,156,251 17,747,986 3,686,306 6,949,828
Financial assets at fair value AR/ (BfE:HE B H&
through profit or loss B AZHERNE
RMEE 52) 202,637 228,266 - -
Notes receivable EZE 100 1,811 - -
Trade receivables IR 53)(a) 680,560 671,044 160 160
Advances to suppliers EE S 5(4) 6,284,002 585,740 22,028 32,767
Interest receivable FEKHE 22,828 19,980 22,808 18,443
Dividends receivable FE M ARA 5(5) 26,530 21,825 - -
Other receivables Hb MR 5(3)(b); 15(1) 2,588,088 2,509,853 46,164,863 36,815,628
Inventories Ve 5(6) 61,580,118 58,089,148 44,133 44,133
Current portion of non- —FREBOERD
current assets BE 5(14) 521,664 593,030 - -
Assets classified as held for ~ B|D AREEFENBE
sale 5(7) 9,921 9,921 - -
Other current assets HitndEE 5(8) 2,630,440 2,180,922 1,560 2,449
Total current assets FEEES 87,703,139 82,659,526 49,941,858 43,863,408
Non-current assets ERBEE
Available-for-sale financial  AJ{HE S REE
assets 5(9) 84,057 86,444 84,057 86,444
Long-term equity RERERE
investments 5(10):15(2) 5,860,826 5,515,566 4,036,036 3,471,750
Investment properties REMEE 5(12) 11,918,843 10,373,033 - -
Fixed assets BT &E 5(13) 133,366 136,727 55,381 56,706
Long-term receivables REELR 5(14) 2,600,459 2,283,991 66,706 323,075
Goodwill G 5(15) 172,137 172,137 - -
Long-term prepaid expenses & i S 91,020 104,573 - =
Deferred income tax assets EEFEREE 5(29)(c) 690,535 469,401 316,955 158,304
Other non-current assets A IERENEE 5(16) 600,839 - - -
Total non-current assets ~ FRBEES 22,152,082 19,141,872 4,559,135 4,096,279
TOTAL ASSETS BEM 109,855,221 101,801,398 54,500,993 47,959,687

BRIEXRMNARAT
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
SHRAFEERRER

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
ZE-AEAASTH (RENEHN  SREABARETRT)

Audited Audited
Unaudited 31 December Unaudited 31 December
30 June 2016 2015 30 June 2016 2015
REET & REET S
B-RE “T-0F ZE-RE —T-1%
AA=tHR tZA=t-H AA=tH tZA=t-H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH (=2 i =0 AF NG
Current liabilities REEE
Short-term borrowings AN 5(18) 2,888,776 3,005,029 1,870,000 1,111,000
Notes payable ENZE 86,085 39,476 - -
Trade payables AL 5(19) 4,830,834 6,197,916 13,568 15,951
Advances from customers  TBUFIE 5(20) 16,962,276 12,678,775 60,807 60,307
Employee benefits payable  [FE( 5 T & 521) 54,500 199,294 30,690 127,555
Taxes payable ERHE 5(22);15(3) 1,699,899 2,234,615 2,393 2,156
Interest payable FEH 8 442,661 330,095 278,226 174,506
Dividends payable JERTARA 5(23) 495,822 197,803 329,841 -
Other payables Hi R 5(24) 3,769,149 3,032,293 17,541,580 17,485,747
Current portion of non- —FREHNERD
current liabilities =K 5(25) 10,867,755 6,756,707 760,000 1,810,000
Total current liabilities REEES 42,097,757 34,672,003 20,887,105 20,787,722
Non-current liabilities EREaE
Long-term borrowings KA 5(26) 21,254,462 24,106,490 11,070,000 10,590,000
Debentures payable e &% 527) 16,478,380 12,481,249 14,936,704 7,956,770
Long-term payables REEMAR 5(28) 5,206,675 5,508,075 = =
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFEHRAE 5(29)(0) 1,735,589 1,341,408 - -
Derivative financial liabilites {144 @A G 5(30) 115,610 55,601 - =
Total non-current liabilities FFEEES 44,790,716 43,492,823 26,006,704 18,546,770
Total liabilities BE&H 86,888,473 78,164,826 46,893,809 39,334,492
Equity EY $5
Paid-in capital RA 5(31) 3,027,960 3,027,960 3,027,960 3,027,960
Capital reserve BADNE 5(32) 2,297,681 2,483,656 3,347,206 3,347,206
Other comprehensive income  E 44 IS 5(46) 491,481 537,541 6,297 8,087
Surplus reserve BB 5(33) 499,806 495,150 499,806 495,150
Retained eamings RAEAE 6,689,893 6,780,525 725,915 1,746,792
Total equity attributable to BRI R AR EER
owners of the Company &% 13,006,821 13,324,832 7,607,184 8,625,195
Non-controlling interests SERRER 9,959,927 10,311,740 FER TER
Total equity REERES 22,966,748 23,636,572 7,607,184 8,625,195
TOTALLIABILITIESAND ~ BERRREZA
EQUITY 109,855,221 101,801,398 54,500,993 47,959,687
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — &MIBA SRz M 5T BB ISRz AR S -
statements.
Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
TEEBEA: FEGHIIEREA: EIRERBEA
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
B RATREER
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
REET KRR REET KRR
BE-%-REF HE-ZT-1F BE-B-"F HE-T-1%
ANAZTHE AA=tHE  RA=ZTHE  AA=THLE
~ME A 7~ M8 A EE 7~ ME A 7~ 8 A EE
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item L i At At A R
Revenue EEWA 5(35);15(4) 4,907,908 5,447,244 5,641 12,927
Less: Cost of sales W EERR 5(35);5(37) (4,135,444) (4,389,373) = =
Taxes and surcharges BERS RHM 5(36) (384,092) (402,804) (4,394) (6,891)
Selling and distribution HEEH
expenses 5(37) (254,479) (291,948) - -
General and EEER
administrative
expenses 5(37) (183,802) (179,858) (40,185) (53,968)
Financial income/ MEBA/
(expenses) — net (BR)— %8 5(38) 150,274 57,581 (594,097) (239,601)
Asset impairment losses BERERKX 5(339) - (93,443) - -
Add: Gains arising from n: AREEZHKE
changes in fair value 5(42) 891,400 1,081,321 - -
Investment income BEKS 5(43);15(5) 308,484 148,233 17,725 80,537
Including: Share of Heh: Yo
profit of joint Gl
ventures and MR E W
associates 218,976 69,208 17,725 66,140
Operating profit/(losses) &7,/ (EiE) 1,300,249 1,376,953 (615,310) (206,996)
Add: Non-operating income  fil : & 4NIA 5(40) 61,583 78,724 118 2,59
Including: Gains on disposal ~ H i : JERENEE
of non-current REHG
assets 134 176 - -
Less: Non-operating expenses J5i - &M 5(41) (3,015) (29,099) (52) -
Including: Losses on disposal ~ Ef : JEREN A E
of non-current BERKX
assets (35) - - -
Total profit/(losses) B/ (B8 88 1,358,817 1,426,578 (615,244) (204,402)
Less: Income tax expenses il : FTEH & H 5(44) (275,795) (415,512) 158,054 68,636
Net profit/(losses) B/ (FR) 1,083,022 1,011,066 (457,190) (135,716)
Attributable to: FBREARRENF
— Owners of the Company 778 519,616 503,293 N/ATEH NATER
— Non-controlling interests D&k R 1825 563,406 507,773 N/ATE A N/A T
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
B RATREER
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months
ended ended

30 June 2016 30 June 2015
RBET RCER
BE-E-AE HZ2-T-1F%

Unaudited
Six months
ended

30 June 2016
REET

Unaudited
Six months
ended

30 June 2015
KRR

BE-®-AF HE_T-1F

AA=TAHL NA=THIE AAZTAHLE NA=THIE
AMEAHE B A ~ERHE N E A
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH Miat i aft A A7
Other comprehensive HtFAMENHATE
income for the period
net of tax 5(46) (46,060) 8,671 (1,790) 6,305
ltems that may be reclassified A% EHBEIBFH
to profit or loss Az alam (46,060) 8,671 (1,790) 6,305
— Changes in fair value — A ELBEE
of available-for-sale RMrEEE
financial assets (1,790) 6,306 (1,790) 6,305
—Recycling of changesin =~ — RTEAEF AEfB4RA
fair value of WHREMRE
investment WERLEE
properties previously 2ygHEn
recognized in other
comprehensive
income (30,329) - - -
— Currency translation — NERBRENE
differences =8 10,795 (9,877) - -
— Effective portion of —ReREEHER
cash flow hedges WERE S (24,736) 12,242 - -
Total comprehensive GERRLE
income for the period 1,036,962 1,019,737 (458,980) (129,411)
Attributable to: BEREARRENEG
— Owners of the company AlhzsEas 473,556 511,964 N/ATER N/ATER
— Non-controlling interests GBI D HRRHGA
Wl 563,406 507,773 N/ATER NATER
Earnings per share for SRz (EREERE
profit attributable to NAEBERRRAHF
owners of the Company /&) 5(45)
— Basic earnings per share  EAFRE
(RMB Yuan) (ARETT) 0.17 0.25 N/ARER N/ATE R
— Diluted earnings per share  #EG Rz
(RMB Yuan) (ARET) 0.17 0.25 N/ATEA NAER

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

TEEREEA:

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Person in charge of accounting:

TEGIEREA:

Interim Report 2016
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Head of accounting department:
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
AHRATRSRER

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended

30 June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
REET REER REET KRR
BE-E-X%F HZ-T-1F BE-T-"F HE-T-1fF
NAZTHE AA=tHILE  ARAZTHE  AA=tHIE
~MER B 7~ A EE ~MER B ~E A EE

Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
ltem HHE i3 i =l AH NG
Cash flows from operating S&FBHELNRLTE

activities
Cash received from sales of ~ $HERER -+ ALK
goods and rendering of HmRe
services 9,877,222 7,976,345 5,641 12,927
Cash received relating to R Eth RSB
other operating activities BHR S 119,955 210,450 1,711,753 4,978,134
Sub-total of cash inflows & EEEEH AN 9,997,177 8,186,795 1,717,394 4,991,061
Cash paid for goods and BEAM EXEBX
services 5 e (13,570,970)  (13,914,945) - (6,957)
Cash paid to and on behalf ~ {HAB T UK AR T
of employees xRS (328,072) (336,645) (124,232) (46,433)
Payments of taxes and IRMEEHE
surcharges (1,480,072) (1,737,850) (5,059) (11,300)
Cash paid relating to other T LS EEHF
operating activiies BrEs (1,170,703) (822811)  (11578.867)  (11,832,661)
Sub-total of cash outflows E&FBREEFE /Nt (16,549,817)  (16,812,251)  (11,708,158)  (11,897,351)
Net cash flows from REEBELNRER
operating activities EFE 5(47)(a) (6,552,640) (8,625,456) (9,990,764) (6,906,290
Cash flows from investing REZTBELNRERE
activities
Cash received from disposal B EWEIHH S
of investments 5(10)(a)(vii) 81,000 = - =
Cash received from returns — BUSHRE W ATk EI B
on investments He 8,100 2,390 - 14,397
Net cash received from REETEE  EVE
disposal of fixed assets, EMEMRAEER
intangible assets and other  [EIE)IR 4558
long-term assets 1,068 745 - =
Cash received from disposal ~ BEFARUEINE S
of subsidiaries FE 723,112 4,133 546,229 =
Cash received relating to WEIEth T B EE A
other investing activities AR 5(47)(d) 1,279,188 - 483,615 1,143,273
Sub-total of cash inflows ~ REZEHEER AN 2,092,468 7,268 1,029,844 1,157,670

BRIBEXRNARAT —TB-—AEFHEE
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

BOHRATDHRERER

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2016 30June 2015 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
REET KRR REET KRR
BE-2-AF BZE_T-1F HE-Z-RF HE_ZT-1f¥
NAZTHE  AA=tHILE  ARAZTHE  AA=THIE
758 A H N E A ] 78 A H N E A ]
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
ltem HHE (i3 L =l AF NG
Cash paidto acquire fixed ~ BRETEE BV E
assets, intangible assets ENAMRBEES
and other long-term assets #9584 (705,920) (253,464) (40) (31)
Cash paid to acquire REXMNESE
investments (55,800) (469,682) (500,000) (20,000)
Net cash paid for disposal of ~ RE T2 "R HIH &
subsidiaries b 5(47)h) (26,965) (166,256) = -
Cash paid relating to other TR EMEREEZEHF
investing activities bk 5(47)(e) (1,563,105) (1,937,545) (58,000) (449,391)
Sub-total of cash outflows REZFBREEFE /Nt (2,351,790) (2,826,947) (558,040) (469,422)
Net cash flows from BREZHELNRALT
investing activities BRE (259,322) (2,819,679) 471,804 638,248
Cash flows from financing EZEHELNELTE
activities
Cash received from capital ~ RUIREWEIHH S
contributions 980,000 2,280,000 - -
Including: Cash received from  H i : R DR EH
non-controlling BWEIMR S
interests’ capital
injection 4(1)(3)(iv) 980,000 - - -
Cash received from NG ESE]
specific capital BEAEHE
management hedllzop
plan by
subsidiaries - 2,280,000 - -
Cash received from BFEKERNERE
borrowings 4,238,733 16,285,961 1,729,000 5,572,600
Cash received fromissuing ~ #{TESWEIHNHES
bonds 5(27) 6,973,110 2,972,100 6,973,110 2,972,100
Cash received from other YR EMmRESEEE
financing activities apEka 5(47)() 1,720,103 10,250 = -
Sub-total of cash inflows ~ EEZFHB LR NG 13,911,946 21,548,311 8,702,110 8,544,700
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
AR ABRRERER

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-Z—ARFAA=THLEXNEASE (RESIZHN  @ESVAARETT)
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2016 30 June 2015 30 June 2016 30 June 2015
RIEG RICEST RBEG RICEST
BE-E-AE HE_T-1F BE-E-~E HE_T-1F
AE=THL ANA=THIE AE=TAHL NA=THIE
~ME B A 7~ ME A B A~ME B A ~E A B
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
[tem EH Btz A At NG NG
Cash repayments of EEEBXANRE
borrowings (7,079,300) (6,360,426) (1,540,000) (1,050,000)
Cash paid for repayments of  FRRIEBEE:HEIX
specific capital fI0RE
management plan 402)2)(b) (650,000) - - -
Cash payments for interest D BREA « FEskER
expenses and distribution R ELFEE &
of dividends or profits (2,188,647) (3,230,286) (868,603) (803,881)
Cash paid relating to other T EMEEEEZHAF
financing activities lapkea 5(47)(g) (1,057,230) (789,645) (34,480) (456,000)
Sub-total of cash outflows Z&EEH &KL N (10,975,177) (10,380,357) (2,443,083) (2,309,881)
Net cash flows from EETHELNESE
financing activities BRE 2,936,769 11,167,954 6,259,027 6,234,819
Effect of foreign exchange EZEFHHESMFE
rate changes on cash 16,895 14,786 (3,589) (3,912)
Net (decrease)/increase B4 (F2) /&
in cash 5(47)(b) (3,858,298) (262,395) (3,263,522) 12,865
Add: Cash at beginning of 1 : ER#73R & 8258
the period 5(47)(b) 15,849,118 10,759,150 6,449,828 2,512,139
Cash at end of the period  HiRHE £ 545 5(47)(b) 11,990,820 10,496,755 3,186,306 2,525,004

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

EEREEA

1& P TS $RR PR B TSR O BB D

Person in charge of accounting:

TESIEREA:

Head of accounting department:

SERIMBREA

BRIEXRMNARAT

SR -AFRHERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS' EQUITY

BORREZSE R

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

Unaudited
e

Attributable to owners of the Company

FENBRARRES

Other
Paid-in Capital  comprehensive Surplus Retained  Non-controlling
Note capital surplus income TeServes earnings interests ~ Total equity
Item ! Mt R ARRE  Httlaka BANE  RORNE JEREER  RRERAH
Balance at “5-1%-8-A
1 January 2015 BI8E 2,027,960 706,109 581,134 360,628 5,444,301 12,293 3% 21,413,526
Movement for the six BZ-Z-%f
months end AA=TH
30 June 2015 MR
HEERABE
Comprehensive income &8 IR z#4%
Profit for the period FHE = = = = 503,293 507,773 1,011,066
Other comprehensive ~ Efti&z A0z
income - - 8,671 - - - 8,671
Total At = = 8,671 = 503,293 507,773 1,019,737
Capital contribution and - RERZAFH L E
withdrawal by A H
owners, including:
Equity transaction BOHRRR S
with non-controlling
interests - (125,351) - - - (2,089,517) (2,214,868)
Investment from TAREE
spectfic capital VEVHE
management Rbenix &
plan - - - - - 2,040,300 2,040,300
Profit distributionto~~ {RRAINE
owners 5(34) - - - - (506,990) (245,569) (752,559)
Balance at “5-1f
30 June 2015 AR=TH
HRGE 2,027,960 580,758 589,805 360,628 5,440,604 12,506,381 21,506,136

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Interim Report 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS' EQUITY

BFRRERSER

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

Unaudited
AEET
Attributable to owners of the Company
BREREAARRER
Other Non-
Paid-in Capital - comprehensive Surplus Retained  controlling
Note capital surplus income reserves earnings interests  Total equity
fem 2 i BE  EAOR RRsARE  ESOE  AORWA OHEREE  BRESH
Balance at “%-55-5-A
1 January 2016 HI8E 3,027,960 2,483,656 537,541 495,150 6780525 10,311,740 23,636,572
Movement for the six BZ=Z-5x%E
months end ARZTH
30 June 2016 LE~fEA
BEEE2DE
Comprehensive income 78 W& 25
Profit for the period ~ FF(E - - - - 519,616 563406 1,083,022
Other comprehensive ~ E iz Az
losses - - (46,060) - - - (46,060)
Total i - - (46,060) - 519,616 563,406 1,036,962
Capital contribution and - RRBAFFLH &
withdrawal by A He
owners, including;
Capital contribution ~~ RRIAER  4(1)3)
from owners (iv) - - - - - 980,000 980,000
Equity transaction BOHRRRS  400)
with non- (b)
controlling
interests - (185,975) - - - (1,617,710 (1,803,685)
Appropriations RREBLE  5(33) - - - 4,656 (4,656) = =
Profit distributionto ~~ HRRAAE
equity owners 5(34) - - - - (605,592) (277,509) (883,101)
Balance at ZE-5F
30 June 2016 AB=TH
HRGE 3,027,960 2,297,681 491,481 499,806 6,689,893 9950927 22,966,748

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

EEREEA:

Person in charge of accounting:

TEGHIEEBEA:

&I TS MR IR A TSR ERKED S -

Head of accounting department:

SEHRBREA

BRIEXRMNARAT

S i
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS' EQUITY

ARARFER B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

Unaudited
AEE
Other
Paid-in Capital  comprehensive Surplus Retained  Total owners'
Note capital surplus income reserves earnings equity
Item 15 i3 k& EA0E  HftReuE BHAR  AORAE  RRERA:
Balance at 1 January 2015 =ZF-R%-f—-BH4]
B8 2,027,960 1,279,308 5819 360,628 1,043,085 4,716,800
Movement for the six BECEZ-1EAAZ1H
months ended LAARSEEREDE
30 June 2015
Comprehensive income Falingg
Profitfor the period gl - - = = (135,716) (135,716)
Other comprehensive Epala
income - - 6,305 - - 6,305
Totdl A - - 6,305 - (135716)  (129411)
Profit distribution to equity ~ HREEAHE
owners 5(34) - - - - (506,990) (506,990)
Balanceat30June 2015  —E-REXB=TRHK
HE 2,027,960 1,279,308 12,124 360,628 400,379 4,080,399
Balance at 1 January 2016 =Z-~F-F—RH{
Ba 3,027,960 3,347,206 8,087 495,150 1,746,792 8,625,195
Movement for the six BE-E-~EAB=TH
months ended JJ:/\@H HELHE8E
30 June 2016
Comprehensive income et arctd
Profit for the period pEripEd - - - - (457,190) (457,190)
Other comprehensive Eftra e
loss - - (1,790) - - (1,790)
Totdl A% - - (1,790) - (@57.190)  (458,980)
Profit distribution to owners  4RREI D E 5(34) - - - - (605,592) (605,592)
Adjustment due to a FRABRAELR
subsidiary becoming a joint
venture 15(2)(b) - - - 4,656 41,905 46,561
Balanceat30June 2016  =E-AERA=TRHK
B 3,027,960 3,347,206 6,297 499,806 725915 7,607,184

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Legal representative:

ERAERA:

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2016

Person in charge of accounting:
TEEHIEREA:

&I TS MR IR R TSR AR B -

Head of accounting department:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-Z-AFAASTRLEANEAHE (BRERIERN  SEENRARETT)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (hereinafter “the Company”) was
established by seven companies (hereinafter “the promoters”)
on 23 July 2002, namely Beijing Capital Group Ltd.
(hereinafter “Capital Group”), Beijing Sunshine Real Estate
Comprehensive Development Company (hereinafter
“Sunshine Comprehensive”), Beijing Capital Sunshine Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital Sunshine”),
Beijing Capital Technology Investment Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
“Capital Technology”), Beijing Capital Hangyu Economic
Development Co., Ltd. (renamed “Beijing Capital
Development Co., Ltd.” as at 28 April 2007, hereinafter
“Capital Development”), China Resource Products Limited
(hereinafter “China Resource”) and Yieldwell International
Enterprise Limited (hereinafter “Yieldwell International”). The
Company'’s place of registry is the People’s Republic of China
(hereinafter “the PRC”) and is headquartered in Beijing, the
PRC. The parent company and the ultimate parent company
of the Company is Capital Group, a state owned enterprise
corporates in Beijing. The Company was listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in June
2003. And as at 30 June 2016, the total share of the

Company is RMB3,027,960,000 with RMB 1 per share.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the Group”)
are principally engaged in the real estate development and
investment, commercial real estate operation, property

consulting services and equity investment.

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 19 August 2016. The interim financial

statements were unaudited.

. REEXIER

BRIBERNDERAB (LA THEIA
ARNR-—BEE-_F+A-+=HH
IR EMEEEEER QA (LATHE
[BAIEE ] ERGEEHERE
FEAE (LATRBIEXEEGE] - 3t
RERIGEEERREEAE (B
THEIEaIBEY])  tREalR R
BERABI(ATHEIHARKD -
EREEMFLBEERBRAARN
—EELFNMA -+ NEHER AL
REAERERAA] ATHEIE
gl FERYMEBRAR (AT
BIAEME]  BERBRLERR
AEI(ATEIEBEREE]D ERAA
ERBEBAATHBIERAL R
Y AT EARLME
(ATEIPBEDIERT - @Epiur
ABFEIERT - AARKNE AR M
BERARHAEAEE HA—XK
RIERTRIMNBEEE - KAAR
RS- NAEERHERSMAB
RARERFELETRSG R
—NERNA=ZTH  AARMBRKRA
#53,027,960,000 7T * &HEE1TT °

AR RFRARATAEIAER])
TERFEHMERBELIRE  BEM
BB DA R 5 B SR 81K M RS S 3%

AMBHREARARANEFEN_F

—ANFENATHBHUE - Kb H8
WRAREERT -

BRIBEXRNARAT —TB-—AEFHEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEESHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(1). Basis of preparation

(1). MBBROERER

The financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises
— Basic Standard, the specific accounting standards and
other relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of
Finance on15 February 2006 and in subsequent periods
(hereafter collectively referred to as “the Accounting
Standard for Business Enterprises” or “CAS").

The financial statements were prepared on a going
concern basis.

. Statement of compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2016 are in compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and truly
and completely present the financial position of the
Consolidated and the Company as at 30 June 2016 and
of their financial performance, cash flows and other
information for the six months ended 30 June 2016.

. Accounting year

The accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31
December.

. Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company and most of its
subsidiaries is Renminbi (RMB), while the functional
currency of subsidiaries incorporated in France and
Australia is the local currency.

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FE=stHEN=sH 55t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES §
(Continued)
(5). Business combinations (5). XSG
(@) Business combinations involving enterprises (@) B—EZEHTHRESH

under common control

The consideration paid and net assets obtained by
the acquirer in a business combination are
measured at the carrying amount. The differences
between the carrying amount of the net assets
obtained and the carrying amount of the
consideration paid for the combination is
recognized in the capital reserve (share premium).
If the capital reserve (share premium) is not
sufficient to absorb the difference, the remaining
balance is recognized in retained earnings.

Costs directly attributable to the combination shall
be recognized in profit or loss for the year when
occurred.

Transaction costs in the issue of equity securities
and debt securities attributable to the combination
shall be recognized in initial amount of equity
securities and debt securities.

Business combinations involving enterprises
other than common control

The consideration paid and identifiable net assets
obtained by the acquirer in a business combination
are measured at fair value on the acquisition date.
Where the cost of the combination exceeds the
acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquirer’s
identifiable net assets, the difference is recognized
as goodwill; where the cost of combination is
lower than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the acquirer’s identifiable net assets, the
difference is recognized in profit or loss for the
current period.

BH TN A HEER
MENFEEDRE@E
Bt E - A TEERF
BEREEEEINNG
HYEREEENERE
B E AR QBN G
B) : BARE(BEARE)
TRAHRE - HEEE
Was o

RETEEEHELENE
EHEBEARELERA
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EFUEBEEFNR S
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ERERFH AR S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . X EeimENEH4Et
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(5). XS/ (E)
(b) Business combinations involving enterprises (b) FEE—EHITHEESH

(5). Business combinations (Continued)

other than common control (Continued)

For a business combination involving entities other
than common control achieved in stages, in the
separate financial statements, the initial cost shall
be the summation of the book value of the
previously held interest before the acquisition date
and the additional investment cost on the
acquisition date. In the consolidated financial
statements, the previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured at fair value on the
acquisition date, and the difference between the
fair value and book value is recognized as
investment income for the current period. If other
comprehensive income was recognized regarding
the equity interests previously held in the acquiree
before the acquisition date, the relevant other
comprehensive income is transferred to investment
income for the year acquisition occurs. Difference
between the sum of the fair value of consideration
along with the fair value of equity interests of the
acquiree held previously, and the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired on the acquisition
date is recognized as goodwill.

Costs directly attributable to the combination are
recognized in profit or loss in the year when it
incurred. Transaction costs in the issue of equity
securities and debt securities attributable to the
combination shall be recognized in initial amount
of equity securities and debt securities.

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . TEEestHFEME 45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (#&)
(Continued)
(6). Preparation of consolidated financial (6). B BHRRNVERE L E
statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control and are de-consolidated from
the date that such control ceases. For a subsidiary that is
acquired in a business combination involving enterprises
under common control, it is included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date when it, together
with the Company, comes under common control of the
ultimate controlling party. The portion of the net profits
realized before the combination date is presented
separately in the consolidated income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
where the accounting policies and the accounting
periods are inconsistent between the Company and
subsidiaries, the financial statements of subsidiaries are
adjusted in accordance with the accounting policies and
accounting period of the Company. For subsidiaries
acquired from a business combination involving
enterprises other than common control, the individual
financial statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted
based on the fair value of the identifiable net assets on
the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEEHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(6). Preparation of consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

All significant inter-group balances, transactions and
unrealized profits are eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements. The portion of a subsidiary’s equity,
the portion of a subsidiary’s net profits and losses and
comprehensive income for the year not attributable to
the Company are recognized as non-controlling interests
and income attributed to non-controlling interests as
presented separately in the consolidated financial
statements within equity, net profits and comprehensive
income respectively. Unrealized inter profit or loss in
transactions where the Company sells assets to its
subsidiaries are fully eliminated to the net profits
attributable to owners of the Company. Unrealized inter
profit or loss in transactions where a subsidiary sells
assets to the Company are eliminated between the net
profits attributable to owners of the Company and the
profit or loss of the non-controlling interest in proportion
to the Company’s allocation to the subsidiary. Unrealized
inter profit or loss in transactions between subsidiaries
selling assets are eliminated between the net profits
attributable to owners of the Company and the profit or
loss of non-controlling interest in proportion to the
Company'’s allocation to the selling side.

A transaction will be adjusted from the perspective of
the Group in condition that assertions are different
when accounting entities are the Group and the
Company or its subsidiaries.

. Cash

Cash comprise cash on hand and deposits that can be
readily drawn on demand.

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING —. B RN (LET
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES :f
(Continued)
(8). Foreign currency translation (8). /NI E
(a) Foreign currency transactions (a) RSB

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
RMB using the spot exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into RMB using the spot exchange rates on the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising
from these translations are recognized in profit or
loss for the current period, except for those
attributable to foreign currency borrowings that
have been taken out specifically for the acquisition
or construction of qualifying assets, which are
capitalized as part of the cost of those assets.
Nonmonetary items denominated in foreign
currencies that are measured at historical costs are
translated at the balance sheet date using the spot
exchange rates at the date of the transactions. The
effect of exchange rate changes on cash is
presented separately in the cash flow statement.

Translation of foreign currency financial
statements

The asset and liability items in the balance sheets
for overseas operations are translated at the spot
exchange rates on the balance sheet date. Among
the owners’ equity items, the items other than
“retained earnings” are translated at the spot
exchange rates on the transaction dates. The
income and expense items in the income
statements of overseas operations are translated at
the spot exchange rates on the transaction dates.
The differences arising from the above translation
are presented separately in the owners’ equity, as
other comprehensive income. The cash flows of
overseas operations are translated at the spot
exchange rates on the dates of the cash flows. The
effect of exchange rate changes on cash is
presented separately in the cash flow statement.

INER BRI FEERN
BIHAE R iGHMNE S BRITH
RAREAR -

REERERA  INEE
MMEERAEERGR
HHAHEXFER/AR
- RBRENAERER
BRMEGEHOEEMEA
WINEEPFIERELENE
HEBREENMCHARA T
BRI EMER Z5H
BEGAERER - UE
SRR EBRINEIER
IR REEAMBRA
KARXSEERANHE
R H EXFHHRS
N ZBRaRenREeRkTd
BEIBI|R -

SNSRI B BRNITE

BIMEENEERGBRT
WEEMBEIER @ KA
EEARRBMAIHER
E - BRERERETRAD
EEFEIER SN HAMthIEH
PR 2% A B A B EREE R AT
B BIMEENNE RS
WKWAEERIER - £KKA
R 5% & A e RV HARE 47
o LT EEENINE
BERITEER ST AHM
el o BIMNSERE
eREHERB - HABEERM
ERAHMEHEEXH
H-EXEHURESHOT
25 Eiﬁ,il/lbi%q]
B °

BEIEXBRNAERIR —B-AFHHHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =—. FE&xtBENE {45t

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)

(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (9). €T AR

(a) Financial assets (a) =REE
(i) Classification of financial assets () =HEESHE

Financial assets are classified into the S EE ER VIR TER
following categories at initial recognition: RoER: AARE
financial assets at fair value through profit or Bt BHEHTA
loss, receivables, available-for-sale financial EHERNS/RE
assets and held-to-maturity investments. The = FEURGRIE - alt
classification of financial assets depends on HESREENRER

the Group's intention and ability to hold the
financial assets. The financial assets of the
Group are mainly comprised of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss,
receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include trading financial assets and
financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit and loss.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, including
trade and other receivables, etc. (note 5(3)).

56 BENING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2016

ERHRE - RE
ER D BEURN AL
BHEREENTA
EENMFAEEN - A
SENSRMEERR
NanBEFERR
RPN ik
TREE  BYWFIR
MAHHEERE
= o

AR IEEFEAE
BEFAE Rz

L‘M}/‘EFTE#%H,\

SFABHEREN
fﬁmﬁéﬁ%@%ﬁ&%li
TREENETE RN
ANEEAELEE
B AEMBRENS
BEE -

JEW A

FEM R IR R AR E B
MIZFRAERE @
W < %8 & E 3 AT HETE
NITTESRMEE
BRERWARREH
R RE(HE R
B3) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivative financial assets that are either
designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories at initial
recognition. Available-for-sale financial assets
are included in other current assets on the
balance sheet if management intends to
dispose of them within 12 months of the
balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognized at fair value
on the balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument. For financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss,
the relevant transaction costs are recognized
in profit or loss for the current period.
Transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets are included in their
initial recognition amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEEsHBENEiH (45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (%)
(Continued)
(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9). €I A&
(@) Financial assets (Continued) (a) SWEEE)
(i) Recognition and measurement (i) BRME(E)
(Continued)

Fair values are used to determine the
subsequent measurements of available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. However, for
equity investments that neither have quoted
price available in an active market nor fair
values can be reliably measured, cost method
should be used in measuring. Receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.

Changes in fair value of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized as fair value gain or loss into
profit or loss for the current period; Interests
or cash dividends gained during the holding
period of assets, and disposal gain or loss are
recognized into profit or loss for the current
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FE&sREME 45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)
(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9). EMITAE)
(@) Financial assets (Continued) (a) &WEEE)
(i) Recognition and measurement (i) #ERFE(E)
(Continued)

Gain or loss arising from changes in fair value
of available-for-sale financial assets is
recognized directly in equity, except for
impairment losses and exchange gain or loss
arising from translation of foreign monetary
financial assets. When such financial assets
are derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized directly into equity is
recycled into profit or loss for the current
period. Interests of available-for-sale debt
instrument investments, which are calculated
by effective interest method during holding
period, and cash dividends related to
available-for-sale equity instrument
investments announced by investee
companies are recognized as investment
income in profit or loss for the current
period.

Impairment of financial assets

Except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, the Group assesses the
carrying amounts of financial assets at each
balance sheet date. If there is objective
evidence indicating that a financial asset is
impaired, the Group shall make a provision
for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =—. FE&xtBENE {45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)
(9). Financial instruments (Continued) (9). €I A%E)
(@) Financial assets (Continued) (a) SWEEE)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) =HEERME(E)
Objective evidence indicating impairment of i‘iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéiﬁi
financial assets refers to the matter that BENEERE 215
actually occurs after the initial recognition of %rﬂfé?’fﬂﬁ%@wfﬁ
financial assets, it will affect estimated future BEREER  YiZe
cash flows of financial assets, and its impact A EMTEET AR

can be reliably measured by the Group.

Objective evidence of impairment on
available-for-sale equity investments includes
the significant or prolonged decline of the
fair value of those equity instruments. The
Group assesses the carrying amounts of
available-for-sale equity instruments
individually at each balance sheet date. If the
fair value of the equity instrument declines
for more than 50% (included) compared
with the initial investment cost or the decline
lasts for more than one year (included), the
impairment occurs; if the fair value of the
equity instrument declines for more than
20% (included) but not beyond 50%, the
Group will take other relevant factors, such
as price fluctuations into consideration to
judge whether the impairment occurs. The
Group applies weighted-average method to
estimate the initial investment of the
available-for-sale equity instrument
investment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FE&sREME 45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (#)
(Continued)
(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9). EMITAE)
(@) Financial assets (Continued) (a) &WEEE)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) =HEERME )
When an impairment loss on a financial asset ABESARR NET 2 A&
carried at amortized cost has occurred, the BB ERERER
amount of loss is measured at the difference BRIEARARBE S RnE
between the assets’ carrying amount and the (T BFEEAREED
present value of its estimated future cash REEEHELR)RE
flows (excluding future credit losses that have BENREEHEAERNZE

not been incurred). If there is objective
evidence that the value of the financial assets
recovered and the recovery is related
objectively to the event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed and
such amount is recognized in profit or loss.

In the case of a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets, the accumulated loss arising
from the decline in fair value that had been
recognized directly in equity is removed from
equity and recognized in impairment loss. For
an investment in an equity instrument
classified as available-for-sale on which
impairment losses have been recognized, the
increase in its fair value in the subsequent
period is recognized in equity directly.

In the case of decline in the cost model of an
available-for-sale financial assets, the
difference between its book value and the
present value of the cash flow discounted at
present market rate of similar financial asset
shall be recognized in profit or loss. Accrued
impairment will not be reversed in the future
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . TEEestHFEME 45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)
(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9). €I A&
(@) Financial assets (Continued) (a) SWEEE)

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

(iv) ZEEERKILER

A financial asset is derecognized when any of
the below criteria is met: (1) the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the
financial asset expire; (2) the financial asset
has been transferred and the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to the
transferee; or (3) the financial asset has been
transferred and the Group has not retained
control of the financial asset, although the
Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and
the cumulative changes in fair value that had
been recognized directly in equity, is
recognized in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEESHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9). EMITAE)

(b) Financial liabilities (b) £REE

Financial liabilities are classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial liabilities. The Group's financial
liabilities are mainly derivative financial liabilities
and other financial liabilities (including payables,
borrowings and debentures payable, etc.).

Forward foreign exchange contract measured by
hedge accounting is accounted as derivative
financial liabilities. Other forward foreign exchange
contracts are measured at fair value and the
changes in fair value are recognized in profit or
loss.

Payables include trade and other payables, etc.
which are initially recognized at fair value and
recorded at amortized cost using effective interest
rate in subsequent measurement.

Borrowings and debentures payable are initially
recognized at fair value less trading expenses and
recorded at amortized cost using effective interest
rate in subsequent measurement.

Financial liabilities with repayment period within 1
year (included) or in an ordinary operation cycle
are stated as current liabilities; other financial
liabilities with repayment period over 1 year but
repayment date within 1 year (included) from
balance sheet date are stated as current portion of
non-current liabilities; others are stated as non-
current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEEHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9). eMIT A&

(b) Financial liabilities (Continued) b) E&@BmEE#HE)

A financial liability is derecognized or partly
derecognized when the current obligation is
discharged or partly discharged. The difference
between the carrying amount of the derecognized
part of the financial liabilities and the consideration
paid is recognized in profit or loss.

Determination of fair value of financial
instrument

The fair value of a financial instrument that is
traded in an active market is determined by the
quoted price in the active market. The fair value of
a financial instrument that is not traded in an
active market is determined by using a valuation
technique. The Group uses the valuation technique
when it is applicable under current conditions and
there are enough available data and other
information to support and the technique should
maximize the use of relevant observable.
Unobservable inputs are used under the
circumstance that the relevant observable inputs
cannot be obtained or not feasible. Those inputs
should be consistent with the inputs a market
participant would use when pricing the asset or
liability.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . X EeimENEH{45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(9). EMIA#E)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities should be presented
separately in balance sheet without offsetting. A
financial asset and a financial liability should be
offset when, and only when, both of the following
conditions are satisfied: (1) The Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and the legal enforceable
right is now executable; (2) The Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to liquidate the
financial asset and settle the financial liability
simultaneously.

(10).Hedging activities

The Group sets forward foreign exchange contract as
hedging instrument to avoid foreign exchange risks.
Changes in cash flow of the hedging instrument are
expected to offset the changes in cash flow of hedged
items. The Group accounts the hedging by using cash
flow hedge.

Fair value of the hedging derivatives would be classified
as a non-current asset or liability when the residual
maturity of the hedged item is longer than 12 months.

The Group continuously records its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether
the derivatives used in hedging transactions are highly
effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged
items (whether the offset results are between 80% and
125%). The Group adopts ratio analysis to assess
subsequent effectiveness of cash flow hedge.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . X EeimENEH4Et
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(10).Hedging activities (Continued) (10).EHR{E (&)

Gain or loss on the cash flow hedging instrument
relating to the effective portion is recognized in other
comprehensive income and presented separately,
Amount of the effective portion is the lower of the
absolute value of the two items below:

(1) Accumulated gain or loss on the hedging
instrument from hedging date;

(2) Accumulated changes in present value of expected
future cash flow of hedged transactions from
hedging date.

Gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion, that is
gain or loss deducting the portion recognized in other
comprehensive income, is recognized in profit or loss.

When the hedged item impact the profit and loss, the
gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in
other comprehensive income is transferred out and
recognized in profit or loss. However, when a hedged
prospective transaction results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset, the gain or loss previously
recognized in equity is transferred out from equity and
included in the cost of the non-financial asset at the
initial recognition.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, the
hedging contract terminated, or a hedge no longer
meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the Group no
longer applies hedging account. Any cumulative gain or
loss recognized in equity previously when hedging is
effective will be transferred out and recognized in profit
or loss till the prospective transaction ultimately occurs.
When a prospective transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognized in equity
previously when hedging is effective is transferred out
and recognized in profit or loss immediately.
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =. X ES:BURMET{E5t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)
(11).Receivables (11).EWF A

Receivables comprise trade and other receivables. Trade EWHIEBIEREWERER - 14

receivables arising from sale of goods or rendering of W E KREBEHINEER

services are initially recognized at fair value of the o BRI AL 85 A T K O FE U BR X

contractual payments from the buyers or service ERBETEEEX HEW

recipients. WEaRIBERERNRIAEE
ERYIRTER R -

(a) Receivables that are individually significant () EESEEANEFIE
and subject to separate assessment for AR 1 1Y I R IR
provision for bad debts
Receivables that are individually significant are %]‘ HeEEANREK
subject to separate impairment assessment. If there N BHEETRER

is objective evidence that the group will not be
able to collect the full amount under the original
terms, a provision for impairment of that receivable
is recognized.

The criterion for determining “individually
significant” is as follows: trade receivables are all
individually significant, for other receivables, any
individual amount exceeds RMB30,000,000.

The provisions for bad debts of those individually
significant amounts is determined as the difference
between the present value of estimated future
cash flow of receivables and its carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-Z-A"FAASTRLEANEAME (BRERIFZRN  SHEEVNRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(11).Receivables (Continued)

(b) Receivables that are subject to provision for
bad debts on the grouping basis

Receivables with amounts that are not individually
significant and those receivables that have been
individually assessed for impairment and have not
been found impaired are classified into certain
groupings based on their credit risk characteristics.
The provision for bad debts is determined based
on the historical loss experience for the groupings
of receivables with similar credit risk characteristics,
taking into consideration of the current
circumstances.

Basis for grouping is as follows:

Group of related parties  Amounts due from related
parties

Group of third parties Amounts due from other
third parties

Methods of determining provision for bad debts by
grouping are as follows:

Group of related parties  Low credit risk upon
assessment, no bad
debts provided

Group of third parties Assessment based on
historical losses

The Group has no receivables with amounts that
are not individually significant and in high risk
based on their credit risk characteristics.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING =—. FE&xtBENESsH{45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)
(11).Receivables (Continued) (11).ERFIE (2)
(c) Receivables with amounts that are not () BEESERTEABEE

FHR AR I B WK TE

individually significant but subject to separate
assessment for provision for bad debts

The reason for making separate assessment for BIET IR EREFENIE S
provision for bad debts is that there exists objective B FEEEBHEIERRANR
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect EEEE LR EWRIEN
the amount under the original terms of the BB &R B 518 o
receivable.
The provision for bad debts is determined based BEREFENIRAEA
on the amount of the present value of the future 1B ¥ 8 W 508 /Y FE 5T AR 2R
cash flows expected to be derived from the ReneREBEANEER
receivable below its carrying amount. BEMEZFHETE

(12).Inventories (12).EZE

(a) Classification () 28

FEBERERA - FE
EmfMEESELSE &
P 7 B 0] B 3R R (B B K AT

Inventories include properties under development,
properties held for sale and low-cost consumables,
which are measured at the lower of cost and net

realizable value.

Measurement of inventories

Inventories are initially recognized at the actual
costs. The costs of properties under development
and properties held for sale comprise land cost,
construction cost, capitalized borrowing costs, and
other direct and indirect fees incurred during the
development period. On completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties held for
sale at the actual costs. For land use rights that are
developed for subsequent sales, the cost paid for
land use rights are classified and accounted for as
part of the costs of properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEEHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)
(12).Inventories (Continued) (12).7&8 (&)

(b) Measurement of inventories (Continued)

(b) FEHFELEE)

Public ancillary facilities comprise government-
approved public ancillary projects, i.e. roads etc.
The relevant costs are recognized in the properties
under development, and are recorded by each cost
items, the cost paid for land use rights are
classified and accounted for as part of properties
under development.

Measurement of net realizable value and
provisions for inventories impairment

Provisions are determined at the excess amount of
the carrying value of the inventories over their net
realizable value. Net realizable value is determined
based on the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs to
completion, estimated selling expenses and related
taxes.

The Group adopts the perpetual inventory system.

Low-cost consumables are amortized using the
one-off amortization method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEESHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(13).Long-term equity investments

(13).REKRERE

Long-term equity investments comprise the Company’s
long-term equity investments in its subsidiaries, the
Group's long-term equity investments in its joint
ventures and associates.

Subsidiaries are the investees over which the Company
is able to exercise control. Joint ventures are joint
arrangements of which the net asset is attribute to the
Group based on the legal forms, terms of contract and
other facts and the investees over which the Group is
able to exercise joint control together with other
ventures. Associates are the investees that the Group
has significant influence on their financial and operating
policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in the
Company'’s financial statements using the cost method,
and are adjusted for preparing the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method. Investments in joint
ventures and associates are accounted for using the
equity method.

When the accounting policies and the accounting
periods are inconsistent between the Company and
investees, the financial statements of investees are
adjusted in accordance with the accounting policies and
accounting periods of the Company and recognize the
investment income accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEEHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(13).Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(13).RERERE (&)
(a) Measurement of investment cost (a) RERAEE

For long-term equity investments acquired through
a business combination: for long-term equity
investments acquired though business combination
involving enterprises under common control, the
investment cost shall be the acquirer’s share of the
carrying amount of owners’ equity of the acquiree
on the combination date; for long-term equity
investment acquired through a business
combination involving enterprises other than
common control, the investment cost shall be the
combination cost.

For long-term equity investments acquired not
through a business combination: for long-term
equity investment acquired by payment in cash,
the initial investment cost shall be the purchase
price actually paid; for long-term equity
investments acquired by issuing equity securities,
the initial investment cost shall be the fair value of
the equity securities issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEESHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(13).Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(13).REBRERE (&)
(b) REFERBHEBRLZE

(b) Subsequent measurement and recognition of

investment income and loss

For long-term equity investments accounted for
using the cost method, they are measured at the
initial investment costs, and cash dividends or
profit distribution declared by the investees are
recognized as investment income in profit or loss.

For long-term equity investments accounted for
using the equity method, where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity investment
exceeds the Group’s share of the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets on the acquisition
date, the long-term equity investment is measured
at the initial investment cost; where the initial
investment cost is less than the Group’s share of
the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net
assets on the acquisition date, the difference is
included in profit or loss and the cost of the long-
term equity investment is adjusted upwards
accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-Z-A"FAASTRLEANEAME (BRERIFZRN  SHEEVNRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . TEEestHFEME 45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)
(13).Long-term equity investments (Continued) (13).RERERE (&)

(b) Subsequent measurement and recognition of
investment income and loss (Continued)

For long-term equity investments accounted for
using the equity method, the Group recognizes the
investment income or losses according to its share
of net profit or loss of the investee. The Group
discontinues recognizing its share of net losses of
an investee after the carrying amount of the long-
term equity investment together with any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the
investor’s net investment in the investee are
reduced to zero. However, if the Group has
obligations for additional losses and the criteria
with respect to recognition of provisions under the
accounting standards on contingencies are
satisfied, the Group continues recognizing the
investment losses and the losses are recognized as
estimate debts. For changes in owners’ equity of
the investee other than those arising from its net
profit or loss, other comprehensive income and
profit distribution, the Group adjusts the carrying
amount of long-term equity investments and
records its proportionate share directly into capital
reserve. The carrying amount of the investment is
reduced by the Group’'s share of the profit
distribution or cash dividends declared by the
investee. The unrealized profits or losses arising
from the intra-group transactions amongst the
Group and its investees are eliminated in
proportion to the Group's equity interest in the
investees, and then based on which the investment
gains or losses are recognized. For the loss on the
intra-group transaction amongst the Group and its
investees attributable to asset impairment, any
unrealized loss is not eliminated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEESHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(13).RERERE (&)

(13).Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(c) Definitions of control, joint control and () BEHBIRES fzﬁﬁ}""‘
significant influence - HEEZEH - EARE
oRrid

Control is the power over the investee when the
investor is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee
companies, and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee
companies.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the Group and the other
parties sharing control.

Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

Impairment of long-term equity investment

The carrying amounts of long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are reduced to the recoverable amounts
when the recoverable amounts are below their
carrying amounts (Note 2(20)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEEHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(14).Joint operations (14). £ E &K=

Joint operations are operations with a contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
jointly enjoy related assets and are responsible to related
liabilities. Under joint operations, the assets and liabilities
which belong to joint operations and are related to
profit shares should be recognized separately or shared
by proportion; Revenues were recognized from selling
the Group's share in joint operations or selling products
of joint operations; expenses were recognized separately
or shared by proportion in the joint operations.

(15).Investment properties

Investment properties, including land use rights that
have already been leased out, buildings that are held for
the purpose of leasing and buildings that is being
constructed or developed for the purpose of leasing in
future, are measured initially at cost. Subsequent
expenditures incurred in relation to an investment
property is included in the cost of the investment
property when it is probable that the associated
economic benefits will flow to the Group and their cost
can be reliably measured; otherwise, the expenditures
are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they
are incurred.

The Group adopts the fair value model for subsequent
measurement of investment properties. Investment
properties are measured at fair value model when the
following conditions are met:

(@ There is an active property market where the
investment property locates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . X EeimENEH{45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(15).Investment properties (Continued)

(15). R EHEHhE (&)

(b) The Group can obtain the market price or the
relevant information regarding the same type of or
similar property market, so as to reasonably
estimate the fair value of the investment property.

Depreciation or amortization will no longer be provided
for investment properties measured at fair value.
Investment properties will be valued as at the balance
sheet date and its carrying amount will be adjusted
accordingly. The difference between the fair value and
the carrying amount will be charged to the current profit
and loss account of the Group.

When objective evidence indicates that the purpose of
the real estate has changed and the Group converts
investment property to owner-occupied property or real
estate inventory, the property’s carrying amount is
stated at the fair value on the conversion date. The
difference between the fair value and the original
carrying amount is recognized in profit or loss for the
current period. When any owner-occupied property or
real estate inventory is converted to investment
properties to be measured through the fair value model,
the fair value on the conversion date is recognized as
the carrying amount of the investment property. When
the fair value on the conversion date is less than its
carrying amount, the difference will be charged to profit
or loss for the current period. When the fair value on the
conversion date is more than its carrying amount, the
difference will be charged to other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . FEEHBENE Lt
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(15).REMFHE (&)

(15).Investment properties (Continued)

Where fair value of investment properties under
construction is not reliably measurable but is expected
to be reliably obtained after the construction is
completed (including those investment properties under
construction acquired initially by the Group), the
property is measured at cost until the earlier of the date
construction is completed or the date at which fair value
becomes reliably measurable.

For investment properties under construction measured
at cost, land use rights are amortized by using the
estimated useful life and net residual rate. The
amortization is capitalized.

An investment property is derecognized on disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. The net amount of proceeds from sale,
transfer, scrapping or damage of an investment property
substract its carrying amount and related taxes and
expenses is recognized in profit or loss for the current
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . TEEestHFEME 45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (4)
(Continued)
(16).Fixed assets (16).BIEEE
(a) Recognition and initial measurement (a) BEEEERIARARKRITE

Fixed assets comprise buildings, machinery
equipment, motor vehicles, and office equipment.
Fixed assets are recognized when it is probable
that the associated economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the related cost can be reliably
measured. Fixed assets purchased or constructed
by the Group are initially measured at cost at the
time of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset
are included in the cost of the fixed asset when it
is probable that the associated economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the related cost can be
reliably measured. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognized. All the other
subsequent expenditures are recognized in profit
or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of the assets to their
estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives. For the fixed assets that have been
provided for impairment loss, the related
depreciation charge is prospectively determined
based upon the adjusted carrying amounts over
their remaining useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

( A

(Continued)

(16).Fixed assets (Continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Depreciation methods of fixed assets
(Continued)

The estimated useful lives, the estimated rate of
residual value and the annual depreciation rate are

\
)

(b)

= EEETTBERME A

(16).BEE&E (&)

EEEENTESLL(E)

EraEnEdEAS
& FRERRERER

as follows: FIRAATE
Estimated rate Annual
Estimated of residual  depreciation
useful lives value rate
FEEERAST FEEERER FHER
Buildings 10-40 year 0% to 10% 2.3% to 10.0%
FENEEY 10-40F 0%ZE10% 2.3%%E10.0%
Motor vehicles 5-10 year 0% to 10% 9.0% to 20.0%
ERITE 5-104F 0% %£10% 9.0% £20.0%
Office equipment 3-10 year 0% to 10% 9.0% to 33.3%
EENS 3-104F 0% 210% 9.0% £33.3%

The estimated useful lives, the estimated residual
value of a fixed asset and the depreciation method
applied to the asset are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate at least each year end.

When recoverable amount of fixed asset is lower
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
should be written down to the recoverable amount
(Note 2(20)).

Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. The amount of proceeds from
disposal on sale, transfer, scrapping or damage of
a fixed asset substract its carrying amount and
related taxes and expenses is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . X EeimENEH{45t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(17).Borrowing costs

(17).5EREH

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of investment properties or
real estate projects that need a substantially long period
of time for its intended use commence to be capitalized
and recognized as part of the cost of the asset when
expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs have
been incurred, and the activities relating to the
acquisition and construction that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use have commenced.
The capitalization of borrowing costs ceases, when the
investment properties under acquisition or construction
becomes ready for its intended use, the properties under
development become ready for sale (generally after
Completion Certification granted), the borrowing costs
incurred thereafter are recognized in profit or loss for
the current period. Capitalization of borrowing costs is
suspended during periods in which the acquisition or
construction of the asset is interrupted abnormally and
the interruption lasts for more than 3 months, until the
acquisition or construction is resumed.

For borrowings that specified for acquisition and
construction of investment properties and real estate
projects and qualified for capitalization, the
capitalization amount is measured as current actual
interests of the specified borrowings subtract interest
revenue earned from unused borrowings deposited at
bank or investment income earned from temporary
investment activities with unused borrowings.

For general borrowings that occupied by the acquisition
and for construction of investment properties and real
estate projects qualified for capitalization, the
capitalization amount should be the weighted average
exceeds of accumulated capital expenditures for
capitalization over the amount of specialized borrowings
multiplied by the weighted average effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate is the rate used to
discount the estimated future or the applicable shorter
period cash flows of the borrowings to the initial
measurement of the borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(18).Intangible assets

Intangible assets are land use rights and are measured at
cost. The cost of land use rights obtained for
construction of real estate projects and investment
properties is recognized in inventory development costs.

(a)

(b)

(9]

Land use rights

Land use rights are amortized over the useful life
of 50 years. If the purchase costs of land use rights
and the buildings located thereon cannot be
reliably allocated between the land use rights and
the buildings, all of the purchase costs are
recognized as fixed assets.

Periodical review of useful life and
amortization method

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life,
review and adjustment on its useful life and
amortization method are performed at each year
end.

Impairment of intangible assets

When the recoverable amount of an intangible
asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount should be written down to the recoverable
amount (Note 2(20)).

(19).Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include expenditures that
have been incurred but should be recognized as
expenses over more than one year in the current and
subsequent periods. Long-term prepaid expenses are
amortized on the straight-line basis over the expected
beneficial period and are presented at actual expenditure
subtract accumulated amortization.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-

2.

—ANEARA=ZTHIEANEASE (BREBIZHN  SHEEMRBARETT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . X E@rHENE(4E
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (&)
(Continued)

(20).Impairment of long-term assets

(20).RHEERE

Fixed assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives,
investment properties measured using the cost model
and long-term equity investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are tested for impairment if
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired at
the balance sheet date. If the result of the impairment
test indicates that the recoverable amount of the asset is
less than its carrying amount, a provision for impairment
and an impairment loss are recognized for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the
present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset. Provision for asset impairment is
determined and recognized on the individual asset basis.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a
group of assets to which the asset belongs to is
determined. A group of assets is the smallest group of
assets that is able to generate cash inflows
independently.

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial
statements is tested at least annually for impairment,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that it
may be impaired. In conducting the test, the carrying
value of goodwill is allocated to the related asset groups
or groups of asset groups which are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the business combination. If the
result of the test indicates that the recoverable amount
of an asset group or group of asset groups, including
the allocated goodwill, is lower than its carrying amount,
the corresponding impairment loss is recognized. The
impairment loss is first deducted from the carrying
amount of goodwill that is allocated to the asset group
or group of asset groups, and then deducted from the
carrying amounts of other assets within the asset groups
or groups of asset groups in proportion to the carrying
amounts of assets other than goodwill.

Once the above asset impairment loss is recognized, it
will not be reversed for the value recovered in the
subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(21).Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of considerations given
in exchange for services rendered by employees or
compensation paid in order to terminate the
employment relationship. Employee benefits mainly
include short-term employee benefits, demission
benefits, termination benefits and other long-term
employee benefits, etc.

(a)

(b)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits mainly include
wages or salaries, bonuses, allowances and
subsidies, staff welfare, social security
contributions, housing funds, labor union funds,
employee education funds, short-term
compensated absences and profit sharing plan.
When an employee has rendered service to the
Group during an accounting period, the Group
shall recognize short-term employee benefits as
liabilities and charge to the cost of an asset or as
an expense at the same time. Non-monetary
benefits are measured in accordance with fair
value.

Demission benefits

Demission benefits are classified as defined
contribution plan and defined benefit plans.
Defined contribution is demission benefits plan in
which the Group is not obliged to make further
payment after paying a certain amount to
individual funds. Defined benefit plans is other
demission benefits plan except for defined
contribution plan. During the period, demission
benefits mainly include basic social pension security
and unemployed insurance, both of which are
defined contribution plan.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-

—ANEARA=ZTHIEANEASE (BREBIZHN  SHEEMRBARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(21).Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Demission benefits (Continued)

Basic social pension security

Employees of the Group participate in the basic
social pension plan set up and administered by the
government authorities. Basic pensions are
provided monthly according to stipulated
proportions and basis, which are paid to local labor
and social security institutions. After retirement of
employees, local labor and social security
institutions will pay related pensions to employees
accordingly. When an employee has rendered
service to the Group during an accounting period,
the Group shall compute and recognize liabilities
according to the above stipulation and charge to
the cost of an asset or as an expense at the same
time.

The Group provides a pension scheme, which is
established under the rules and regulations of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
("MPF Scheme"), for all employees in Hong Kong.
The statutory contribution requirements to the
MPF Scheme are minimum 5% of eligible
employees’ relevant aggregate income and
maximum of HKD 1,500 monthly. The assets of this
pension scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(21).Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Demission benefits (Continued)

(9]

Supplementary pension security plan

Qualified employees of the Group can voluntarily
join the supplementary pension security plan.
Supplementary pensions are provided monthly
based on employees’ social security basis published
in April and proportions of 5% from the Group
and 5% from employee, which are paid to trustee.
After retirement of employees, trustee will pay
related pensions to employees accordingly. When
an employee has rendered service to the Group
during an accounting period, the Group shall
compute and recognize liabilities according to the
above stipulation and charge to the cost of an
asset or as an expense at the same time.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payables when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
employment contract expire, or compensation
provided as an offer to encourage employees to
accept voluntary redundancy. The Group
recognizes termination benefits as liabilities and
charges to profit or losses at the earlier of the
following dates: when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of termination plan; and when
the Group recognizes costs for restructuring which
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Termination benefits to be paid within 1 year from
balance sheet date are stated as current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(22).Equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified
as equity instruments when both of the following

conditions are satisfied:

(a)

The financial instruments have no contractual
obligation to pay in cash or other financial assets
to other parties nor to exchange financial assets or
liabilities under potential adverse condition with
other parties;

The financial instruments should and can be settled
via equity instruments of the Group. For non-
derivative instruments, the instruments have no
contractual obligation to be settled by delivering
fixed number of equity instruments of the Group.
For derivative instruments, they can only be settled
through the exchange of fixed number of the
Group's equity instruments with fixed amount of
cash or other financial assets.

The amounts issued by the subsidiaries and classified as
equity instruments in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are presented as non-
controlling interest.

(23).Distribution of dividends

The amount of dividends is recognized as liability in the
current period in which it is approved by general
meeting of shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE=

—ANEARASTHIEANEASE (FRERIZHN  SHEEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(24).Provisions

Provisions for product warranties, pending litigations
etc. are recognized when the Group has a present
obligation, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Factors surrounding a contingency, such as
the risks, uncertainties and the time value of money, are
taken into account as a whole in reaching the best
estimate of a provision. Where the effect of the time
value of money is material, the best estimate is
determined by discounting the related future cash
outflows. The increase in the discounted amount of the
provision arising from passage of time is recognized as
interest expense.

The carrying amount of provisions is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

(25).Revenue recognition

The amount of revenue is determined in accordance
with the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from the sales of goods and the rendering of
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s business
activities. Revenue is shown net off rebates, discounts
and returns.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(25).Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognized when the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group,

the related revenue can be reliably measured, and the
specific revenue recognition criteria have been met for
each type of the Group's business activities as described

below:

(a) Sales of goods

(i)

Revenue of sales of development properties
is recognized when all the following
conditions have been satisfied:

properties are completed and accepted
after check;

a legally binding sales contract has been
signed;

all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the development
properties have been transferred to the
buyer;

the Company does not retain the
management rights, which is normally
associated with owner, on the
development properties sold and has
no control over the development
properties sold. And other criteria
required when recognizing revenue
mentioned above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE=

—ANEARASTHIEANEASE (FRERIZHN  SHEEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(25).Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Rendering of services

The Group provides service to external parties. The
related revenue is recognized using the percentage
of completion method, with the stage of
completion being determined based on proportion
of costs incurred to date to the estimated total
costs.

(26).Government grants

Government grants are the gratuitous monetary assets
or non-monetary assets that the Group receives from
the government, including tax returns and financial
subsidies.

Government grants are recognized when there is
reasonable assurance that the grants will be received
and the Group is able to comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Monetary assets of the government
grants are measured as the amount received or
receivable. Non-monetary assets of the government
grants are measured as fair value or notional value if the
fair value cannot be obtained reliably.

A government grant related to an asset is the
government grants acquired by the Group that specified
for acquisition and construction or in other ways to form
long-term assets. For government grants related to
income are government grants other than government
grants related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are recognized as
deferred revenue and will be allocated on a straight-line
basis in profit or loss over the useful life of the related
assets. Government grants recognized at notional value
are directly recognized in the income statement.

Government grants related to income which are used to
compensate expenses or losses in subsequent periods,
are recognized as deferred revenue and realized in profit
or loss for the year such expenses or losses occurred; the
ones which are to compensate expenses or losses
occurred in previous periods are directly recognized in
the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = .  FEEexthEMN {4t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(27).Deferred income tax assets and deferred (27).3E 7E AT 15 B & E M IE Z& Fr

income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are calculated
and recognized based on the differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts (temporary differences). Deferred
income tax asset is recognized for the deductible losses
that can be carried forward to subsequent years for
deduction of the taxable profit in accordance with the
tax laws. No deferred income tax liability is recognized
for a temporary difference arising from the initial
recognition of goodwill. No deferred income tax asset or
liability is recognized for the temporary differences
resulting from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
due to a transaction other than a business combination,
which affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(or deductible loss). At the balance sheet date, deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable income will be
available to offset the deductible temporary differences,
deductible losses, and deductible tax amounts.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference, and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future. When it is probable that the
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates will be
reversed in the foreseeable future and that the taxable
profit will be available in the future to offset the
deductible temporary differences, the corresponding
deferred income tax assets are recognized.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-Z-A"FAASTRLEANEAME (BRERIFZRN  SHEEVNRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(27).Deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset if all
the following conditions are met:

o they related to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority; and

e  that tax payer within the Group has a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
current tax liabilities.

(28).Leases

A finance lease is a lease that substantially transfers all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset. An operating lease is a lease other than a finance
lease.

The Group does not have finance leases. Lease payments
under an operating lease are recognized in the asset
cost or in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
year of the lease.

Income from an operating lease is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the year of the lease.

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-

—ANEARA=ZTHIEANEASE (BREBIZHN  SHEEMRBARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(29).Maintenance and quality guarantee funds

Maintenance fund is collected from property buyers
according to related regulations on behalf of housing
administration bureau, by certain percentage of selling
price of property, the fund will be delivered to housing
administration bureau upon registration of property
ownership. Maintenance fund is recognized in other
payables when received and is for the repair and update
for the common parts and equipment and public
facilities of the real estate specially.

Quality guarantee fund is reserved by certain percentage
of the project payment and when the properties are
completed it will be repaid to constructor, in condition
that there’s no quality issue in agreed warranty period.
Reserved quality guarantee fund is recognized in
payables and is paid after the agreed warranty period.

(30).Held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a component of the group
satisfying the following conditions is classified as held
for sale: (1) the non-current asset or the component in
current conditions can be sold immediately according to
usual trading terms; (2) the Group has made a resolution
and has been approved for disposal of the non-current
asset or the component; (3) an irrevocable contract with
the transferee has been signed; and (4) the transfer will
be completed within one year.

Non-current assets (except for financial assets,
investment property at fair value and deferred tax
assets), which meet the recognition criteria for held for
sale are measured at the lower of the fair value less
costs to sell and the carrying amount. Any excess of the
original carrying amount over the fair value less costs to
sell is recognized as an asset impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . . FEEstHEME 1Lt

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (#)

(Continued)

(30).Held for sale and discontinued operations Bo).BFERFERKILEE (&)
(Continued)
The assets and liabilities in non-current assets classified WE D BEESFENIERHDE
as held for sale and disposal groups are classified as ENEEHATFHNEEMNEARE
current assets and current liabilities and should be listed DTHEAERHEENMRES AR

on the balance sheet separately. WEEEBBRPEBIIR -
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
that either has been disposed of or is classified as held
for sale, and can be distinguished from other
components within the Group in business operation and
in preparation of financial statements: (i) the component
represents a separate major line of business or RE—BEBIAETEFEKS—
geographical area of operations; (ii) is part of a single BEEELLmE: (=) ZAK
coordinated plan to disposal of a separate major line of HAORME — BBV TETEE
business or geographical area of operations; (iii) is a ok — E F B K& [T 1T R
subsidiary acquired exclusively for the purpose of resale. BHEN - (=) Z4ERK

Mo EEESTBLEMRE

IEEERmE AR 2 —
B’JE%&EE&?&% FRNAR
B RELE R B R
REENEARAEBERNEBED
MARED : (—) AR

B)FAR] ©
(31).Segment information (31).2BEE
The Group identifies operating segments based on the AREBARNZPEGERE B2
internal organization, management requirements and TSk - NE |G S| E AKX ISR
internal reporting system and the reportable segments is TEREDEL A& AEE
determined and segment information is disclosed based Mt S D H A B FE B =
on the operating segments. Bo

An operating segment is a component of the Group that
satisfies all of the following conditions: (i) the
component is able to earn revenues and incur expenses
from its operation activities; (ii) whose operating results
are regularly reviewed by the Group’s management to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and to assess its performance; and (iii) for
which the information on financial position, operating
results and cash flows is available to the Group. If two
or more operating segments have the similar economic
characteristics and satisfy certain conditions, they could
be aggregated into one single operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING = . . FEEstHEME {55t
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ()
(Continued)

(32).Purchase shares in subsidiaries from non-

32).BEFRALHERRES

controlling interests and partial disposal of
interest in a subsidiary without loss of
control

For the transaction with non-controlling interest to
partially or wholly acquire interests in a subsidiary after
obtaining the control rights over the subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are measured
consistently following their value at the acquisition or
merger date in the consolidated financial statements.
The difference between additions in long-term
investment due to the interest purchase and additions of
shared net assets of the subsidiary calculated by the
additional share proportion should be recorded in capital
reserve (share premium). In case share premium is not
sufficient to offset the difference, retained earnings
should be adjusted.

For the transaction to dispose long-term equity
investment in a subsidiary with non-controlling interest
without losing control rights over the subsidiary, the
difference between the proceeds from disposal of
interests and the decrease of the shared net assets of
the subsidiary is adjusted to capital reserve (share
premium). In case share premium is not sufficient to
offset the difference, retained earnings will be adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R MY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-Z-A"FAASTRLEANEAME (BRERIFZRN  SHEEVNRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(33).Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting
estimates and key judgments applied based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key

assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year

are as follows:

(i) Property development cost

Critical estimates and judgments on budget
cost and development progress are required
in determining property development cost.
The budget cost and development progress
of the project is reviewed by the Group on a
regular basis and adjusted as appropriate.
When the actual cost differs from the budget
cost, such difference will impact the relevant
property development cost.

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Interim Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-

—ANEARA=ZTHIEANEASE (BREBIZHN  SHEEMRBARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(33).Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes for the
business of property development. There are
many transactions and events for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business.
Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for land
appreciation tax (“LAT"). Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the tax provisions
in the year in which such determination is
made.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually whether assets
have suffered any impairment in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note
2(20), If there is objective evidence that the
carrying amount of assets is in excess of its
recoverable amount, a provision for
impairment and an impairment loss are
recognized for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R MY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-Z-A"FAASTRLEANEAME (BRERIFZRN  SHEEVNRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(33).Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions (Continued)

(iv) Provisions for doubtful debts of

(v)

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

receivables

The Group tests annually whether receivables
suffer any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2(11). If
there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect the full amount
under the original terms, a provision for
impairment of that receivable is recognized.

Deferred income tax assets

Judgment for whether deductible temporary
differences and deductible losses can be
reversed in the future period is required from
the Group in recognizing deferred income
tax assets. For deductible temporary
differences and deductible losses, the Group
recognizes deferred income tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available in the future to offset the
deductible losses.

Interim Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-Z-AFAASTRLEANEAHE (BRERIERN  SEENRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(33).Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions (Continued)

(vi) Fair value of investment properties

The Group adopts fair value model for
subsequent measurement of investment
properties. Where fair value of investment
properties under construction is not reliably
measurable but is expected to be reliably
obtained after the construction is completed
(including those investment properties under
construction acquired initially by the Group),
the property is measured at cost until the
earlier of the date construction is completed
or the date at which fair value becomes
reliably measured.

Critical estimates and judgments are required
in determining the timing to adopt fair value
model for subsequent measurement of
investment properties, the Group make such
estimates and judgments based on the area,
market condition, and development progress
of the investment property project and
obtains independent valuations for its
investment properties at least annually from
an independent professional valuer as a third
party. The fair value is determined in
accordance with the methods below:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE=

—ANEARASTHIEANEASE (FRERIZHN  SHEEMRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(33).Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

Fair value of investment properties
(Continued)

Current prices (open market quotations) in
an active market for the same or similar
investment properties;

When such information above is not
available, then use recent trading prices in an
active market of the same or similar
investment property, and take the factors of
situations, dates and locations of
transactions, etc. into consideration;

Present value calculated based on estimated
future rental income and related cash flows.

Provision for inventory impairment

The Group measures the inventories at the
lower of cost and net realizable value at the
balance sheet date. The calculation of net
realizable value needs assumptions and
estimates. If the management changes the
estimated selling price and the estimated
costs and expenses to completion, the
estimated net realizable value would be
affected; such difference will impact the
provisions of inventories which have been
recognized.

Interim Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(33).Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and key
assumptions (Continued)

(viii) Accounting estimates on impairment of

(ix)

goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment annually, which
requires accounting estimation. The group'’s
goodwill is mainly generated from an
acquisition for a Hong Kong stock exchange
listed company. The group applies the market
value of shares of the listed company at
balance sheet date to evaluate the
recoverable amount of the asset groups and
groups of asset groups.

Deferred income tax liabilities

The Group needs to estimate the possibility
of the dividend distribution or share transfer
of the non-resident enterprises to realize the
taxable temporary difference, when
recognizing deferred income tax liabilities for
taxable temporary differences of withholding
income tax.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)

BE-Z-A"FAASTRLEANEAME (BRERIFZRN  SHEEVNRARETT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(33).Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(b) Critical judgments on application of
accounting policy — revenue recognition

According to the accounting policy stated in note
2(25), the assessment of when an entity has
transferred the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to buyers requires the judgment
according to the circumstances of the transaction.
In most cases, the transfer point of risks and
rewards of ownership coincides with the date
when the buyer check and accept the property or
when the buyer is regarded as checking and
accepting the property.

As disclosed in note 10, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks relating to the mortgage
loans arranged for certain purchasers of the
Group's properties. These guarantees will expire
when relevant property ownership certificates are
mortgaged to banks by the purchasers. The Group
believes that significant risks and rewards
associated to the ownership of the properties have
been transferred to the purchasers when the buyer
check and accept the property or when the buyer
is regarded as checking and accepting the

property.

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD. Interim Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

3. TAXATION =. %iE
The types and rates of taxes applicable to the Group are set ANEBEANTEREREFFER
out below: R
Type Tax rate Taxable base
HE BE HE
Enterprise income tax 25% Taxable income of subsidiaries located in

EERMEN

Value added tax (VAT) (a)
HET ()

Business tax (a)

R ()
LAT
TR ER

City maintenance and construction tax

W

Education surcharge

E BN

Property tax
FEM

25%

5%—-10%

5%—-10%

16.5%

16.5%

5%, 6%, 1%, 17%
5% 6% 1% K& 17%

5%
5%

30%-60%

30%-60%

5%—7%
5%—7%

3%
3%

12%
12%

1.2%
1.2%

the PRC
PEEA TR BRANTRASE

Income from taxable dividends of non-
resident enterprises and investments
disposal in mainland China

FEE R BTN A R B AR
PEREERENBA

Taxable income of subsidiaries located in
Hong Kong
BB T AR ERTE

Taxable value added amount
JE 4N F S (B R

Taxable turnover amount

FEMRTR & X8

Taxable value added amount through
sales of properties

BRI EFTES M RN T I (B3R

Amount of VAT and business tax paid
JEME R - IBEHRRE

Amount of VAT and business tax paid
JEME R - IBEHRRE

Rental income of properties

FEMEE WA

Taxable residual value of properties

FE/FHERE
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104

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

3. TAXATION (Continued)

(a)

BEIING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

In accordance with the Circular on the full
implementation of Levying Value added Tax in place of
Business Tax (Caishui No. 36, 2016) and the Interim
procedures on management of VAT taxation on the sale
of real estate projects developed by real estate
development enterprises(the “Interim procedures”)
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC sales revenue
from the real estate development projects of the
subsidiaries of the Group apply to the value added tax
since 1 May 2016, of which, the project with
construction permit stating the commencement date is
before 30 April 2016 apples the simple tax rate of 5%,
otherwise applies the general rate of 11%. This kind of
business applied to business tax with the rate of 5%
before 1 May 2016.

Interim Report 2016

=. BiIE#®)
(a) WBEHMEL BRBEEEBDE

i B 8 A 2 T #E R 8 S T B
RERASOBRM) (M
[2016]36 5% ) &« B b = A 3% 1
XHEBTHENFEHWEIEREB
BERBKESEETIE) 8
—ZT-XRFRA—BRE K&
B TBFAaHEhEREHE
BEEBWAEREET - HP -
HERIARE-_ZT—X N0
A=+HZR® FAHSH
X5% BERIBHBHEZZT
—RNFEMA=F+HZ#%EKN  fF
B—MBEI1% : R —X
FRA—ABAA EBERE
EW MERS% °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M. £SO REHFUBERRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(1). Significant subsidiaries (—).BEEFAAER
1. Subsidiaries incorporated by promoters at 1. AP TRBRIUBGZHE
establishment of the Company ARAWFAT]
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
HHEA FATRERELA ARTRAELA
Place of
Place of  main Principal 31 December
Name registration operation  activities 30 June 2016 2015 30June 2016 31 December 2015 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
EBHER ZE-RE R ZE-RE it 3-7E “T-9%
FARER e FEEEH S2EE ~AAEtH TZA=t-B  AA=1A TZR=t-H ~AA=TR TZR=t-H

Direct In-direct  Diect In-direct  Direct In-direct  Diret In-direct
Egx BE EF HE EE BE EE FE
% % % % % % % %

(1) Bejing Rongjin Real Estate Bejing,  Befjing,  Property USDETT USDET 10 495 10 095 10 495 10 495
Development Co, Ltd. ~ thePRC ~ thePRC  Development 6,360,000 6,360,000
("Rongjin Company”) and
Investment
IRREEHERE  RT  ART FHERER
BRAA e
(AR [@eRq))
(2) Bejing Sunshine Jindu ~~ Beijing,  Bejjng,  Property RMB AR RVBARH 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Properties Co. Ltd. thePRC  thePRC  Development 370,000,000 370,000,000
(*Jindu Company”) and sales
IrhteBES Iem bR BHERER
ARAR i3
(AT (Bt e8))
(3) Central Plaza Development B.V.I. Hong Kong  Investment USDETT USDET 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Ltd. ("Central Plaza") (i Holding 1 1

Central Plaza Development ZBAFR &% REER
Ud (AT Centrel BB

Plaza)) )

(4) Intemational Financial BV, Hong Kong  Investment USDETT USDET 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Center Property Ltd. Holding 1 1
(FC)

International Financial ~~ EESBR F REER
Center Property Ltd. #S

(ATRIIrC))
(i) As at 30 June 2016, Central Plaza, a subsidiary of the Group, (i) RZT—XRFXA=+H"
has issued mid-term notes amounted to RMB3,250,000,000 N & B 2z F A AlCentral
(As at 31 December 2015: RMB3,250,000,000) PlazaB B 1THRBBAARK
(note 5(27)(c)). 3,250,000,0007t( A = =

—RE+=-A=+t—8: A
R # 3,250,000,000 7T )
HZ & (T (27)(Q) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEE-AFAASTRLEANEAME (BRESBIEHN  SEEURARKTT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND M. tEEHREHTKERE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (&)
(Continued)
(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (=).EEFRARERE)
2. Subsidiaries obtained from business 2. EBRFRA-—EZHTHLE
combinations involving enterprises other than SHMENTFAT

common control

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
HHEA RATHERELA RATRKELH
Place of
Place of  main Principal 31 December
Name registration operation ~ activities 30 June 2016 2015 30June 2016 31 December 2015 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
EBHER ZE-RE CE-RE IR i3 ZE-RE ek
FRRER i TELEN LEEE ~B=TR tZA=t-R ~B=tH +ZR=1-R ~A=1H tZA=t-A
Direct In-direct  Direct In-drect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-dlrect
ER BE B BE ER BER BE @ RE
% % % % % % % %
(1) S.C.Real Estate Bejjing,  Bejng,  Property RMB A K RMBARH 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Development thePRC  thePRC  Development 640,000,000 640,000,000
Co, Ltd. ("S.C.") and sales
BEEBRNERR tRT HRT BHERER
BRAF (AT #E
[HEIE85))
(2) Bejing HYHL Real Bejing,  Bejng,  Property USDER USD%TT - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development ~ thePRC  thePRC  Development 10,000,000 10,000,000
(o, td. and sales
IREREERRE kAT kRm BHERER
BRAR #E
(3) Bejing Anhua ShijiReal Bejjng,  Beijng,  Property USDER USD%TT 55 45 5 4 60 40 60 4
Estate Development ~ thePRC thePRC  Development 30,000,000 30,000,000
(o, td. and sales

(*Anhua Shif)
IRREHEERE ARG tRT EHERER

REERAA HE
(TR (=2t )
(4) TianjinBanshan Renjia ~ Tianjin, ~~ Tianjin, ~ Property USDET USDET - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co, Ltd. ~ thePRC ~ thePRC Development 74,000,000 74,000,000
and sales
REHUAFES XETm  REW BEHERER
ERAR HE
(5) Befjing Sunshine City ~ Bejing, ~ Befjing, ~ Property USDER USDETT 50 50 50 50 60 4 60 40
Real Estate thePRC  thePRC  Development 20,000,000 20,000,000
Development Co,, Ltd. and sales

(“Sunshine City")
G AEE IRm kRm EHERER

BRAR(ATH #HE
[Bxs))
(6) Chongging Capital Chongging, Chongging, Property USDER USDETE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Xinshi Real Estate thePRC thePRC  Development 95,000,000 95,000,000
Development Co,, Ltd. and sales
SERETRES BFm  EEm  EHERER
ARAR HE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 S B

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2016 (ALL AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS OF RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED)
HEER-AFAASTRLEANEAME (RESBIEHN  SEEURARETT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(1).

Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business
combinations involving enterprises other than
common control (Continued)

0. BEREHREHHBRRER

(—).EEFQEE)
2. EBEE-EHTHRE
BSOS F AR (&E)

Y/
(&)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
R ARAFERERLH ARTRRELH
Place of
Place of  main Principal 31 December
Name registration operation  activities 30 June 2016 2015 30June 2016 31 December 2015 30 June 2016 31 December 2015
XBHER ZF-AF 21 B it i3 ZEB-AE it i3
FhAER e TELEN S8R AA=tE TZA=1-H AAZTA tZR=1-R AAZTA +ZA=t-A
Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-dlrect
B B B 73 B B B i
% % % % % % % %
(7) Beijng Xinbocheng ~~ Bejng,  Beijing, Property RMB AR RMB AR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate thePRC  thePRC  Development 89,000,000 89,000,0